MACQUARIE
BANK

2024

Annual
Report

Macquarie Bank
Year ended 31 March 2024

Macquarie Bank Limited
ACN 008 583 542



r r L
r rf
v

rrrr
rr

¥

Macquarie Bank offers
transaction accounts,
home loans, credit cards,
online banking, business it
banking and more. e

o fm im o Jon e

o o o o TR

rr

Frecrt

Macquarie Bank Limited is a subsidiary of Macquarie Group Limited ACN 122 169 279
and is regulated by the Australian Prudential Regulation Authority (APRA) as an
authorised deposit-taking institution (ADI). Macquarie Group Limited is regulated by
APRA as a Non-Operating Holding Company of an ADI.




Contents
01

About

Letter from the Managing Director and CEO 6
Financial highlights 8

Operating and financial review 9

02

Directors’ Report

Directors’ Report 24
Directors’ experience and

special responsibilities 28
Executive Committee 36
Remuneration Report 40

03

Financial Report

Financial statements

Income statements

Statements of comprehensive income
Statements of financial position
Statements of changes in equity
Statements of cash flows

Notes to the financial statements

Statutory statements

Directors’ declaration

Independent auditor’s report

04

Further Information
Additional investor information

Glossary

71

72

73

74

75

76

206

207

216

220



1 Elizabeth, Sydney

Macquarie’s new global headquarters

at 1 Elizabeth Street is a landmark,
state-of-the-art office tower in the
heart of the city’s civic, cultural and
financial district. Connected to our
existing heritage 50 Martin Place
building, it will bring our Sydney
teams together in one campus for
the first time in 25 years when it
opens mid-2024 above a major
public transport interchange.
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Letter from the

Against the less certain
economic backdrop,
Macquarie Bank’s
businesses collectively
delivered a solid net profit
contribution that benefitted
from longstanding

client relationships, the
diversity of our operations,
Macquarie Group’s

proven risk management
framework and culture,
and long-term investment
in technology and
operational efficiency.”

Managing Director

and CEO

Over the past year, the global economy has
experienced a period of weaker growth as central
banks around the world held interest rates at
elevated levels to temper rising inflation. While
major economies have proven more resilient than
many anticipated, consumer and business sentiment
suffered as higher borrowing costs, greater

uncertainty and cost-of-living pressures had an impact.

Despite a tougher environment, we've seen clients continue to
manage their businesses and finances responsibly, with our own
relationship-driven approach consistently centred on regular client
contact and proactively providing tailored support where required.

Against the less certain economic backdrop, Macquarie Bank’s
businesses collectively delivered a solid net profit contribution that
benefitted from longstanding client relationships, the diversity

of our operations, Macquarie Group’s proven risk management
framework and culture, and long-term investment in technology
and operational efficiency.

Macquarie Bank’s consolidated net profit attributable to the
ordinary equity holder of $A2,912 million for the year ended
31 March 2024 decreased 25% from $A3,905 million in the
prior year.

Banking and Financial Services (BFS), Macquarie Group’s Australian
retail banking business, delivered a record net profit contribution
as it benefitted from continued growth in its loan portfolio and
BFS deposits, and credit and other impairment reversals primarily
reflecting an improvement in the macroeconomic outlook. This
was partially offset by margin compression, higher employment
expenses and technology investment to support portfolio growth,
compliance and regulatory requirements.
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Commodities and Global Markets (CGM), Macquarie Group’s global
capital and financing, risk management, market access, physical
execution and logistics solutions provider, delivered a net profit
contribution that was down on the prior year’s record high, mainly
due to lower contribution from Commaodities as volatility in global
commodity markets eased and from Asset Finance, partially offset
by stronger performance in Financial Markets.

CGM’s result was at a similar level to the strong performance of
FY2022, demonstrating ongoing growth in the client franchise
and the benefits of the franchise’s diversification, even in more
subdued markets.

With global economic conditions stabilising and inflation gradually
moving back towards central bank target ranges, market sentiment
has begun to improve.

The diversity of Macquarie Bank’s business mix, strong
capitalisation, well-funded balance sheet and a conservative
approach to risk management continue to position the Bank well
to adapt to ongoing changes in market conditions and support our
clients and other key stakeholders.

CGM management changes

I would like to thank Nicholas O’Kane, who stepped down as Head

of CGM during the year, after almost 30 years with the Macquarie
Group and five as CGM Group Head, for his contribution to
Macquarie Bank. Nick has overseen considerable growth of CGM and
the expansion of its end-to-end client offering globally.

Simon Wright, who was Global Head of CGM’s Financial Markets
division and has been with the Macquarie Group for 35 years,
became Group Head. | have had the pleasure of working with
Simon - who is highly respected across Macquarie - for many years
and he is the right choice to drive the next phase of growth for

the business.

Innovating and investing for a
better future

In line with Macquarie Group’s purpose of ‘Empowering people

to innovate and invest for a better future’, which is embedded
across our business activities and our conduct and culture,
significant investment is underway to position ourselves for future
growth opportunities.

Technology investment in BFS has more than tripled over the last
10 years allowing the business to scale at pace, meet increased
regulatory requirements, improve productivity and deliver cost
efficiencies. Together with an unerring focus on delivering great
client experiences, it's contributed to BFS’ net promoter score - a
measurement of customer loyalty - being significantly better than
our competitors.

Investing in technology is also a longstanding feature of CGM’s
strategy as the business continues its digitalisation journey by
investing in technology and data to capture opportunities to
innovate and drive commercial outcomes. Technology is also a
key sector of focus for CGM teams investing in established and
emerging technologies to support increased activity in a range
of markets.

We continue to deliver on the broader remediation plan agreed with
APRA, undertaking work to strengthen Macquarie Bank Limited’s
(MBL) governance, culture, corporate structure and remuneration
to ensure full and ongoing compliance with prudential standards.
During the year, we have closed out a number of workstreams that
strengthen the Bank’s systems, frameworks, processes and risk
culture, and this will continue in FY2025.

Board changes

To continue strengthening the governance structure of MBL,

in consultation with APRA, we completed the appointment of
further Bank-only Non-Executive Directors (BONDs) to the MBL
Board. David Whiteing joined the MBL Board in September 2023,
and Wayne Byres joined in February 2024, both bringing highly
valued skills and experience. Ahead of Michael Coleman’s planned
retirement, expected by mid-2024, there are currently four BONDs,
providing additional safeguards to protect the interests of MBL
within the Macquarie Group.

Finally, | would like to thank our employees for their ongoing
dedication to our clients and communities, especially during

these more challenging times. As a relationship business,
Macquarie Bank’s success is driven by our people, who bring
expertise, commitment and ideas together to create and realise
opportunities that deliver shared value for our clients, shareholders
and communities.

I look forward to the opening of Macquarie Group’s new global
headquarters in Sydney in FY2025, which will bring together all of
Macquarie Group’s Sydney teams in the one campus for the first
time in 25 years, providing further ways of collaborating, ideating
and innovating.

Stuart Green

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Sydney
3 May 2024



Financial highlights

FY2024 net profit

$A2,912m

W 25% on prior year

FY2024 net operating income

$A11,566m

W 10% on prior year

FY2024 operating expenses

$A7,491m

A 2% on prior year

BFS clients

~1.85m

CGM celebrates

40+ years

of client partnerships

BFS deposits BFS home loan portfolio CGM traded
$A142.7b $A119.3b 8.5bcf
A 10% on prior year A 10% on prior year of natural gas volume across

North America daily
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Our business

Macquarie Bank offers
transaction accounts,
home loans, credit cards,

Financial Report Further Information
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and more.
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Further information is also available at
macquarie.com/compan

For more details on the operational performance
of the Operating Groups, see slides 13 to 16 of the
presentation to investors and analysts available at
macquarie.com/fy24-investor-presentation

Macquarie Bank Limited and its subsidiaries 2024 Annual Report
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Operating and financial review

Our business

For internal reporting and risk management purposes, Macquarie Bank is divided into two Operating Groups,

which are supported by four Central Service Groups.

Operating Groups

Banking and Financial Services (BFS)

BFS provides a diverse range of personal banking, wealth
management, and business banking products and services to retail
clients, advisers, brokers and business clients.

Commodities and Global Markets (CGM)

CGM is a global business offering capital and financing, risk
management, market access, physical execution and logistics
solutions to its diverse client base across Commodities, Financial
Markets and Asset Finance.

Central Service Groups

The Central Service Groups provide a range of functions supporting
the Operating Groups, ensuring they have the appropriate workplace
support and systems to operate effectively and the necessary
resources to meet their regulatory, compliance, financial, legal and
risk management requirements.

Risk Management Group (RMG)

An independent and centralised function responsible for
independent and objective review and challenge, oversight,
monitoring and reporting in relation to Macquarie Bank’s material
risks. RMG designs and oversees the implementation of the risk
management framework.

Legal and Governance Group (LGG)

Provides a full range of legal and corporate governance services,
including strategic legal and governance advice and risk assessment
on corporate transactions, treasury and funding, insurance,
regulatory enquiries and litigation.

Financial Management Group (FMG)

Responsible for capital, funding, liquidity, tax and strategic analysis
and advice to support the growth of the business. It ensures
Macquarie Bank meets its financial, regulatory and tax reporting
compliance obligations, as well as maintaining relationships with

a range of significant external stakeholders.

Corporate Operations Group (COG)

Provides specialist services in technology, operations, human
resources, workplace, data, digital, strategy, operational risk
management, business resilience and global security, and the
Macquarie Group Foundation.
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Operating and financial review

Our business

Our business strategy

The growth of Macquarie’s global operations over 55 years reflects our philosophy to expand selectively, focusing on specialist areas where
we bring deep expertise to address areas of unmet need on behalf of clients and communities in line with our purpose and longstanding
operating principles. We offer our teams significant operating freedom balanced by limits on risk. Alignment of interests is a longstanding
feature, demonstrated by willingness to both invest alongside clients and closely align the interests of shareholders and staff.

This approach has helped us to grow into a diversified global business, conducting a broad range of activities and creating enduring franchises
where we have differentiated perspectives. Our approach has not been to place big bets, but to expand adjacently, taking learnings from one
market to another, or using expertise built in one part of a sector to grow into another.

This philosophy is reflected in our flexible approach to allocating capital. We rely on our teams who are close to their markets and clients to
drive ideas, setting out both the opportunity they have identified but also the associated risks and how they plan to manage them, with the
teams in the business remaining accountable for the long-term outcomes they deliver. Teams at the centre of the organisation assess the
case being made, including second line review of risks, before allocating capital with a view to maintaining diversification across our activities
while seeking an acceptable risk adjusted return for each project, based on its specific characteristics.

Our Purpose Empowering people to innovate and invest for a better future

Why we exist
Our Principles @
How we do business \'__/
Opportunity Accountability Integrity
Our Strategy Annuity style businesses Markets-facing businesses
is developed from the bottom up
BFS CcGM
Banking and Financial Services Commodities and Global Markets
Our core business im.lolves utilising our Evolution driven by:
human Caprtal « Addressing unmet client and community needs

« Building enduring franchises from positions of deep expertise

« Managing diversified businesses across regions and service offerings to deliver
consistent returns through the cycle

« Pursuing evolutionary growth opportunities adjacent to existing businesses

« Ensuring accountability and entrepreneurial endeavour from staff

 Maintaining a strong and conservative balance sheet with diversified sources
of funding

 Adopting a disciplined approach to risk management, underpinned by a sound risk
culture and embedded across Operating and Central Service Groups

to realise opportunities, backed by
a strong balance sheet

Supported from the (o(0]c} FMG RMG LGG
Corporate Financial Risk Management Legal and
centre Operations Group Management Group Group Governance Group

/1| Our purpose and principles and what we expect of our staff are set out in our Code of Conduct.
macquarie.com/what-we-stand-for
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Risk management

A sound risk culture has been integral to Macquarie
Bank’s risk management framework.

Risk culture

Macquarie Bank sets, promotes, monitors and reflects on the

effectiveness of our risk culture. Macquarie Bank’s approach to

maintaining a sound risk culture is based on:

« setting behavioural expectations: Senior Management,
with oversight from the Board, set behavioural expectations.
The way we fulfil Macquarie Bank’s purpose is defined by our
principles of What We Stand For: Opportunity, Accountability
and Integrity. Staff are made aware that these principles must
form the basis of all behaviours and actions. These behavioural
expectations are specified in the Board-approved Code of
Conduct, which is actively promoted by Management and
cascaded through the organisation

« leading and executing: Management implements behavioural
expectations through leadership actions and communication,
organisational governance, incentives and consequence
management, and organisational and individual capability

« monitoring, measuring and reporting: Macquarie Bank
monitors and measures its risk culture to gauge its
effectiveness while promoting continuous improvement.

Risk management framework

Macquarie Group’s risk management framework is the totality

of systems, structures, policies, processes and people within

Macquarie Group that identify, measure, evaluate, monitor, report

and control or mitigate all internal or external sources of material

risk. Macquarie Group maintains a single risk management

framework that is applied appropriately throughout Macquarie

Group, including the Bank Group. Where appropriate, Macquarie

Group’s risk management framework is expanded to achieve

effective separation between the Bank Group and the Non-Bank

Group to mitigate contagion risk.

The framework is supported by a company-wide approach to

policies and procedures, and RMG adopts the same level of rigour

in relation to risk acceptance, monitoring and reporting for all

Macquarie Group entities consistently. Macquarie Bank adopts

policies, procedures and risk limits in accordance with the risk

profile of the Bank Group.

Macquarie Group’s approach to risk management adopts

the ‘three lines of defence’ model, which sets risk ownership

responsibilities functionally independent from oversight and

assurance:

« primary responsibility for day-to-day risk management lies
with the business. The risk owner is the first line of defence.
All staff throughout Macquarie Group are expected to manage
risks in accordance with the risk management framework

» RMG forms the second line of defence and provides
independent and objective review and challenge, oversight,
monitoring and reporting in relation to Macquarie Group’s
material risks

« Internal Audit, as the third line, provides independent and
objective risk-based assurance on the compliance with,
and effectiveness of, Macquarie Group’s financial and risk
management framework.

B Refer to the Risk Management section in the MGL Annual
Report for details on Macquarie Group’s risk management
framework, risk culture and conduct risk management,
which apply to all Macquarie Group businesses including
the Bank Group entities

Macroeconomic and other factors

The key macroeconomic and other factors that
impact Macquarie Bank are:

Market conditions

The general condition of markets, driven by both macroeconomic,
climate and geopolitical factors may have a bearing on Macquarie
Bank’s businesses. Changing market conditions influence the
volume and timing of client and principal transactions across
businesses and the value of various equity, credit and market risk
exposures held by Macquarie Bank on its balance sheet.

The value of the Australian dollar

A significant proportion of Macquarie Bank’s net income is
denominated in foreign currency. Therefore, net income will
be lower in Australian dollar terms if the Australian dollar
appreciates against other foreign currencies, and net income
will be higher in Australian dollar terms if the Australian dollar
depreciates against other foreign currencies.

Potential regulatory changes

Macquarie Bank is affected by changes in regulation. Regulatory
change continues to increase at both the global and Australian
levels and has the potential to affect the regulatory capital

and funding requirements and profitability of Macquarie

Bank’s businesses.

Funding and liquidity

Macquarie Bank uses deposits and debt markets, among other
funding sources, to fund its assets. Macquarie Bank is therefore
exposed to the risk of an increase in the cost of funding, or of
reduced access to funding sources.

Technology

Macquarie Bank recognises that with the use of systems,
technology, and platforms to support its business activities, it
is exposed to risk of loss resulting from failure, inadequacy or
misuse of technology and technology resources.

In determining those risks that are material to Macquarie Group,
we assess the potential for a risk to affect our earnings resilience
and financial strength across market cycles; our ability to meet
regulatory obligations; our stakeholders; and our reputation.
Macquarie Group’s material risks include asset, conduct, country,
credit, environmental and social, equity, financial crime, legal,
liquidity, market, operational, regulatory and compliance,
strategic, tax, technology and cyber, and work health and

safety risks.

A Further details on the management of these material
risks are available at macquarie.com/risk-management
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Operating and financial review

Our business continued

Macquarie Bank’s approach to risk management is based on stable and robust core risk management principles.

Ownership of risk at the business level

Group Heads are responsible for ownership of material risks

that arise in, or because of, their business’ operations, including
identification, measurement, evaluation, monitoring, control and
mitigation of these risks. Before making decisions, clear analysis of
the risks is sought to ensure those decisions are consistent with the
risk appetite and strategy of Macquarie Bank.

Understanding worst-case outcomes

Macquarie Bank’s risk management approach is based on examining
the consequences of worst-case outcomes and determining
whether these are acceptable and within Macquarie Bank’s risk
appetite. This approach is adopted for all material risk types and is
often achieved by stress testing. Macquarie Bank operates a number
of sophisticated quantitative risk management processes, but the
foundation of the approach is the informed consideration of both
quantitative and qualitative inputs by experienced professionals.

14

Requirement for an independent
sign-off by RMG

Macquarie Bank places significant importance on having a strong,
independent risk management function to review, challenge and
sign-off all material risk acceptance decisions. It is essential that
RMG has the capability to do this effectively. RMG has invested in
recruiting skilled professionals from a range of industries, including
those with trading or advisory and capital markets experience. For
all material proposals, RMG’s opinion must be sought at an early
stage in the decision-making process. The approval document
submitted to Senior Management must include independent input
from RMG on risk and return.
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Operating and financial review
for the year ended 31 March 2024

Review of performance and financial position

Overview

Macquarie Bank’s consolidated profit
attributable to the ordinary equity holder
of $A2,912 million for the year ended

31 March 2024 decreased 25% from
$A3,905 million in the prior year.

FULL YEARTO

31 Mar 24 31 Mar 23 Movement

$Am $Am %

Net operating income 11,566 12,791 (10)
Operating expenses (7,491) (7,380) 2
Income tax expense (1,163) (1,506) (23)
Profit attributable to ordinary equity holder of Macquarie Bank Limited 2,912 3,905 (25)

Macquarie Bank Limited and its subsidiaries 2024 Annual Report 15



Operating and financial review

Review of performance and financial position

FY2024 net profit contribution!®) by Operating Group

Summary of the Operating Groups’ performance for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Banking and Financial Services

$A1,241m

AN 3% on prior year due to

« higher net interest and trading income driven by growth
in the loan portfolio and BFS deposits, and the full year
benefit of the rising rate environment, partially offset by
margin compression due to changes in portfolio mix, lending
competition and higher funding costs

* higher fee and commission income driven by growth in
average funds on platform, as well as higher lending and
transaction volumes

« credit impairment reversals largely driven by improvement in
the macroeconomic outlook, particularly in the home loans
portfolio, partially offset by changes in the composition of
portfolio growth.

Partially offset by:

« higher operating expenses driven by higher employment
expenses and increased technology investment to support
portfolio growth, compliance and regulatory requirements.

Corporate

Net expenses of

$A1,445m

V¥ 54% on prior year due to

Commodities and Global Markets

$A3,116m

V 46% on prior year due to

« substantially lower inventory management and trading
income driven by a reduction in trading activity, primarily
in North American Gas and Power, partially offset by timing
of income recognition on Gas and Power transport and
storage contracts

« decreased risk management revenue, primarily in EMEA Gas
and Power, and Resources due to decreased client hedging as
volatility and price movements stabilised across commodity
markets following record highs in the prior year. The decrease
was partially offset by an increased contribution from
Agricultural markets

« higher operating expenses driven by higher expenditure on
technology platform and infrastructure, compliance and
regulatory spend and higher employment expenses.

Partially offset by:

« increased foreign exchange, interest rate and credit products
income driven by increased client hedging activity in foreign
exchange and interest rate products and an increased
contribution from the Futures business

« increased operating lease income driven by increased
volumes in technology and energy sectors.

« increased net interest and trading income, primarily driven by increased earnings on capital reflecting higher central bank interest
rates, improved returns on Group Treasury’s liquid asset portfolio, and the deployment of the Banking Group’s previously elevated
centrally held liquidity and funding surpluses by the Operating Groups

* reduced operating expenses driven by lower performance-related profit share expense as a result of the performance of the
Consolidated Entity and lower expenses on certain legacy and other transaction-related charges

« increase in fee and commission income, reflecting higher recoveries from the Non-Bank of the Central Service Groups’ cost base.

(1) Net profit contribution is management accounting profit before unallocated corporate costs, profit share and income tax.



About

Net operating income

Net operating income of $A11,566 million for the year ended 31 March 2024 decreased 10% from $A12,791 million in the prior year. This
decrease was mainly driven by lower net interest and trading income, partially offset by higher fee and commission income and credit and

other impairment reversals in the current year.

Net interest and trading income

FULLYEARTO
31 Mar 24 31 Mar 23 ¢ 16%
$Am $Am .
on prior year
8,401 10,027

This movement was largely driven by:

« substantially lower inventory management and trading
income driven by a reduction in trading activity, primarily in
North American Gas and Power, partially offset by timing of
income recognition on Gas and Power transport and storage
contracts, in CGM

* decreased risk management income, primarily in EMEA Gas and
Power, and Resources due to decreased client hedging in CGM.

Partially offset by:

« higher earnings on capital reflecting higher central bank
interest rates

 growth in the loan portfolio and BFS deposits, and the full year
benefit of the rising interest rate environment, partially offset
by margin compression due to changes in portfolio mix, lending
competition and higher funding costs

« improved returns on Group Treasury’s liquid asset portfolio.

Credit and other impairment charges

FULL YEAR TO
31 Mar 24 31Mar 23 A significantly
$Am $Am on prior year

49 (114)

This movement was largely driven by:

« release of credit provisions due to improvement in the
macroeconomic outlook.

Partially offset by:
« changes in composition of portfolio growth, in BFS.

Fee and commission income

FULL YEAR TO
31 Mar 24 31 Mar 23 4\ 12%
$Am $Am ;
on prior year
2,591 2,318

This movement was largely driven by:

« higher income due to fees received from the Non-Bank Group
for services provided by the Central Service Groups reflecting
a higher underlying Central Service Groups cost base

* increased client activity in the Futures business, in CGM

« higher average wealth management and banking and lending
fee income driven by growth in average funds on platform and
higher lending and transaction volumes, in BFS.

Net other operating income

FULL YEARTO
31 Mar 24 31 Mar 23 ¢ 6%
$Am $Am .
on prior year
525 560

This movement was largely driven by:
« unfavourable fair value movements on a small number of
unlisted equity investments in CGM.



Operating and financial review

Review of performance and financial position

Operating expenses

Total operating expenses of $A7,491 million for the year ended 31 March 2024 increased 2% from $A7,380 million in the prior year.

Employment expenses

FULL YEARTO
31 Mar 24 31 Mar 23 ¢ 3%
$Am $Am .
on prior year
4,911 4,758

This movement was largely driven by:

« higher salary and related expenses from higher average
headcount and wage inflation

« unfavourable foreign exchange movements

« higher share-based payments expense mainly driven by the prior
year's performance of the Consolidated Entity

« higher one-off staff costs.

Partially offset by:

« lower performance-related profit share expenses as a result of
the performance of the Consolidated Entity.

Non-salary technology expenses

FULL YEAR TO
31 Mar 24 31 Mar 23 4\ 6%
$Am $Am .
on prior year
942 890

This movement was largely driven by:

« increased investment in technology initiatives, with a focus
on data and digitalisation, to support business growth
and compliance.

Income tax expense

Brokerage, commission and fee expenses

FULL YEAR TO
31Mar 24 31 Mar 23 /b 14%
$Am $Am .
on prior year
504 520

This movement was largely driven by:
 unfavourable foreign exchange movements

« increased trading and brokerage activities in CGM
« increased transaction volumes in BFS.

Other operating expenses

FULL YEARTO
31 Mar 24 31 Mar 23 4, 14%
$Am $Am .
on prior year
1,044 1212

This movement was largely driven by:

» lower expenses on certain legacy and other
transaction-related charges

« lower professional fees.

Partially offset by:

« higher occupancy expenses

« increased indirect and other taxes.

Income tax expense of $A1,163 million for the year ended 31 March 2024 decreased 23% from $A1,506 million in the prior year. The effective
tax rate for the year ended 31 March 2024 was 28.5%, up from 27.8% in the prior year.

The higher effective tax rate compared to the prior year was mainly driven by the geographic composition and nature of earnings.
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Statement of financial position

The Consolidated Entity’s Statement of financial position was impacted by changes resulting from a combination of business activities, Group
Treasury management initiatives and macroeconomic factors.

Total assets

AS AT
31 Mar 24 31 Mar 23 /I\ 3%
$Am $Am on 31 March 2023
340,163 330,823

Total assets of $A340.2 billion as at 31 March 2024 increased 3%
from $A330.8 billion as at 31 March 2023.

The principal drivers for the increase were as follows:

loan assets of $A156.7 billion as at 31 March 2024 increased 11%
from $A141.8 billion as at 31 March 2023, driven by loan volume
growth in BFS home and business lending portfolios

trading assets of $A26.6 billion as at 31 March 2024 increased
69% from $A15.8 billion as at 31 March 2023, driven by an
increase in holdings of listed equity securities in CGM

cash collateralised lending and reverse repurchase agreements
of $A49.6 billion as at 31 March 2024 increased 15% from
$A43.2 billion as at 31 March 2023, driven by an increase in
holdings of reverse repurchase agreements as part of Group
Treasury’s liquid asset portfolio management

financial investments of $A19.0 billion as at 31 March 2024
increased 12% from $A16.9 billion as at 31 March 2023, driven
by anincrease in holdings of debt securities as part of Group
Treasury’s liquid asset portfolio management.

These increases were partially offset by:

cash and bank balances of $A28.1 billion as at 31 March 2024
decreased 33% from $A41.6 billion as at 31 March 2023, driven
by a reduction in the overnight deposit held with the Reserve
Bank of Australia (RBA) as part of Group Treasury’s liquid asset
portfolio management

derivative assets of $A23.8 billion as at 31 March 2024 decreased
34% from $A35.8 billion as at 31 March 2023, driven by volatility
and price movements having stabilised across commodity
markets, as well as the maturity of prior year positions. After
taking into account related financial instruments, cash and

other collateral, the residual derivative asset was $A7.2 billion
(31 March 2023: $A9.6 billion). The majority of the residual
derivative exposure is short-term in nature and managed within
the Consolidated Entity’s market and credit risk frameworks,
with a substantial portion of the exposure with investment grade
counterparties

margin money and settlement assets of $A16.6 billion as

at 31 March 2024 decreased 14% from $A19.4 billion as at

31 March 2023, due to a reduction in commodity settlement
assets in CGM.

Total liabilities

AS AT
31 Mar 24 31 Mar 23 /I\ 3%
$Am $Am on 31 March 2023
318,782 310,471

Total liabilities of $A318.8 billion as at 31 March 2024 increased

3% from $A310.5 billion as at 31 March 2023.

The principal drivers for the increase were as follows:

 deposits of $A148.3 billion as at 31 March 2024 increased 10%
from $A134.6 billion as at 31 March 2023, driven by volume
growth in retail and business banking deposits in BFS

« issued debt securities of $A71.9 billion as at 31 March 2024
increased 9% from $A66.1 billion as at 31 March 2023, driven
by the issuance of short-term commercial paper and long-term
bonds by Group Treasury

« other liabilities of $A10.3 billion as at 31 March 2024 increased
35% from $A7.6 billion as at 31 March 2023, driven by higher
commodity-related payables from increased volumes in CGM

* loan capital of $A10.8 billion as at 31 March 2024 increased 14%
from $A9.5 billion as at 31 March 2023, driven by the issuance of
Tier 2 loan capital.

These increases were partially offset by:

« derivative liabilities of $A25.3 billion as at 31 March 2024
decreased 22% from $A32.5 billion as at 31 March 2023,
commensurate with the movement in derivative assets. After
taking into account related financial instruments, cash and
other collateral, the residual derivative liability was $A6.7 billion
(31 March 2023: $A6.5 billion)

« cash collateralised borrowing and repurchase agreements
of $A12.6 billion as at 31 March 2024 decreased 33% from
$A18.7 billion as at 31 March 2023, due to a reduction in
trading activity in CGM and partial maturity of the RBA
Term-Funding Facility.

Total equity
AS AT
31 Mar 24 31 Mar 23 /I\ 5%
$Am $Am on 31 March 2023
21,381 20,352

Total equity of $A21.4 billion as at 31 March 2024 increased 5%
from $A20.4 billion as at 31 March 2023.

The increase in the Consolidated Entity’s equity is on account of
$A2.9 billion of earnings generated during the current period and a
$A0.2 billion increase in foreign currency translation, largely driven
by the depreciation of the Australian Dollar to the United States
Dollar. These increases were partially offset by $A2.1 billion of
dividend payments.



Operating and financial review

Review of performance and financial position continued

Funding

Macquarie Bank’s liquidity risk management framework is designed to ensure that it is able to meet its obligations as
they fall due under a range of market conditions.

Macquarie Bank has diversity of funding across a range of tenors, currencies and products. The weighted average

term to maturity of term funding maturing beyond one year (excluding equity and securitisations) was 3.1 years as at
31 March 2024.

Term funding profile

Detail of drawn funding maturing beyond one year

$A billion
30

25

20

15

1-2yrs 2-3yrs 3-4yrs 4-5yrs 5yrs+
M Senior unsecured debt W Secured debt Subordinated debt M Equity and hybrids

Macquarie Bank has a liability driven approach to balance sheet management, where funding is raised prior to assets
being taken on to the balance sheet. Since 1 April 2023, Macquarie Bank has continued to raise term wholesale
funding across various products and currencies.

Details of term funding raised between 1 April 2023 and 31 March 2024:

Total

$Ab

Issued paper - Senior and subordinated 8.7
Secured funding - Term securitisation and other secured finance 5.0
Loan facilities - Unsecured loan facilities 1.5
Total® 15.2

Macquarie Bank has continued to develop its major funding markets and products during the year ended
31 March 2024.

(1) Issuances cover a range of tenors, currencies and product types and are Australian dollar equivalent based on FX rates at the time of issuance.
Includes refinancing of loan facilities.

20

3.1

years

Weighted
average
maturity
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Capital

The Bank Group’s Level 2 minimum Common Equity Tier 1 (CET1) capital ratio in accordance with Prudential Standard APS 110 Capital
Adequacy is 9%. This includes the industry minimum CET1 requirement of 4.5%, capital conservation buffer (CCB) of 3.75% and a
countercyclical capital buffer (CCyB)® of 0.75%. The corresponding requirement for Tier 1 capital is 10.5%, inclusive of the CCB and CCyB.!
APRA also requires ADIs to maintain a minimum leverage ratio of 3.5%. In addition, APRA may impose ADI-specific minimum ratios which may
be higher than these levels.

Macquarie Bank is well capitalised, with the following capital adequacy ratios as at 31 March 2024.

Bank Group Level 2 Basel Il ratios APRA Basel llI Harmonised Basel 111
Common Equity Tier 1 Capital Ratio 13.6% 18.7%
Tier 1 Capital Ratio 15.5% 20.9%
Leverage Ratio 5.2% 5.9%

A For further information relating to the capital adequacy of Macquarie Bank, refer to
section 6.0 Capital of the Management Discussion and Analysis at macquarie.com/fy24-mda

(1) The CCyB of the Bank Group at 31 March 2024 is 0.71%, this is rounded to 0.75% for presentation purposes. The individual CCyB varies by jurisdiction and the Bank Group

CCyB is calculated as a weighted average based on exposures in different jurisdictions at period end.
(2) Harmonised Basel Il estimates are calculated in accordance with the updated BCBS Basel |1l framework, noting that MBL is not regulated by the BCBS therefore the ratios are
indicative only.
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Directors’ Report
For the financial year ended 31 March 2024

The Directors of MBL submit their report with the financial report of the Consolidated Entity and the Company

for the year ended 31 March 2024.

Principal activities

The principal activity of MBL during the financial year ended

31 March 2024 was to act as a full-service financial services
provider offering a range of commercial banking and retail financial
services in Australia and selected financial services offshore. MBL
is a subsidiary of MGL and is regulated by APRA as an authorised
deposit-taking institution (ADI). In the opinion of the Directors,
there were no significant changes to the principal activities of the
Consolidated Entity during the financial year under review that are
not otherwise disclosed in this report.

Result

The financial report for the financial year ended 31 March 2024 has
been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards.

The consolidated profit after income tax attributable to the
ordinary equity holder for the financial year ended 31 March 2024
was $A2,912 million (2023: $A3,905 million).

Dividends and distributions

On 28 March 2024, 29 September 2023 and 30 June 2023, the
Company paid an ordinary dividend of $A337 million, $A623 million
and $A1,119 million, respectively.

No other ordinary share dividends or distributions were declared or
paid during the financial year by the Company.

State of affairs

There were no other significant changes in the state of affairs of the
Consolidated Entity that occurred during the financial year under
review that are not otherwise disclosed in this report.

Events subsequent to balance date

At the date of this report the Directors are not aware of any
matter or circumstance, other than transactions disclosed in the
financial statements, that has arisen and has significantly affected
or may significantly affect the operations of the Consolidated
Entity, the results of those operations or the state of affairs

of the Consolidated Entity in the financial years subsequent to

31 March 2024.

Rounding of amounts

In accordance with ASIC Corporations (Rounding in Financial/
Directors’ Reports) Instrument 2016/191, amounts in the Directors’
Report and Financial Report have been rounded off to the nearest
million Australian dollars unless otherwise indicated.

Operating and financial review

Please refer to section 1 of this Annual Report for the following in

respect of the Consolidated Entity, which includes:

 areview of the operations during the year and the results of
those operations

» comments on the financial position

e comments on business strategies and prospects for future
financial years.

In respect of likely developments, business strategies and prospects
for future financial years, material which if included would be likely
to result in unreasonable prejudice to the Consolidated Entity,

has been omitted.

Environmental regulations

MBL and its subsidiaries have policies and procedures in place that
are designed to ensure that, where operations are subject to any
particular and significant environmental regulation under a law of
the Commonwealth or of a State or Territory, those obligations are
identified, appropriately addressed and material breaches notified.

The Directors have determined that there has not been any material
breach of those obligations during the financial year.
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Directors
At the date of this report, the Directors of MBL are:

Independent Directors
G.R. Stevens AC, Chair
J.R. Broadbent AC
W.S. Byres

P.M. Coffey

M.J. Coleman

M.A. Hinchliffe

S.J. Lloyd-Hurwitz
R.J. McGrath

M. Roche

I.M. Saines

D.J.K. Whiteing

Executive Voting Directors
S.D. Green, Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer (CEQ)
S.R. Wikramanayake

Other than Mr Byres, Ms Lloyd-Hurwitz and Mr Whiteing, the
Directors listed above each held office as a Director of MBL
throughout the financial year ended 31 March 2024.

Ms N.M. Wakefield Evans AM retired from her role as an Independent
Director on 27 July 2023. Ms Lloyd-Hurwitz was appointed as an
Independent Director on 28 July 2023. Mr Whiteing was appointed

as an Independent Director on 27 September 2023. Mr Byres

was appointed as an Independent Director on 1 February 2024.

Mr Coleman intends to retire as an Independent Director by mid-2024.

Those Directors listed as Independent Directors have been
independent throughout the period of their appointment.

—| Details of the qualifications, experience and special
[ - responsibilities of the Directors and qualifications and
experience of the Company Secretaries at the date of this
report are set out on pages 28 to 35.

Directors’ and officers’ indemnification
and insurance

Under MBL's Constitution, MBL indemnifies all past and present
directors and secretaries of MBL and its wholly-owned subsidiaries
(including at this time the Directors named in this report and the
Secretaries) certain liabilities and costs incurred by them in their
respective capacities.

The indemnity covers the following liabilities and legal costs (subject

to the exclusions described as follows):

« every liability incurred by the person in their respective capacity

« alllegal costs incurred in defending or resisting (or otherwise
in connection with) proceedings in which the person becomes
involved because of their respective capacity

« legal costs incurred by the person in good faith in obtaining legal
advice on issues relevant to the performance and discharge of
their duties as an officer of MBL or its wholly-owned subsidiaries,
if that has been approved in accordance with MBL policy.

The indemnity does not apply to the extent that:

» MBL s forbidden by law to indemnify the person against the
liability or legal costs, or

 anindemnity by MBL of the person against the liability or legal
costs would, if given, be made void by law.

MBL has also entered into a Deed of Access, Indemnity, Insurance
and Disclosure (as amended from time to time) (Deed) with each of
the Directors.

Under the Deed, MBL agrees to, among other things:

« indemnify the Director upon terms broadly consistent with the
indemnity contained in MBL's Constitution

« take out and maintain an insurance policy (or procure that an
insurance policy is taken out and maintained) against liabilities
incurred by the Director acting as an officer of MBL or its
wholly owned subsidiaries. The insurance policy must be for
an amount and on terms and conditions appropriate for a
reasonably prudent company in MBL's position. Insurance must
be maintained for seven years after the Director ceases to be a
Director or until any proceedings commenced during that period
have been finally resolved (including any appeal proceedings)

e grant access to Directors to all relevant company papers
(including Board papers and other documents) for seven
years after the Director ceases to be a Director or until any
proceedings commenced during that period have been finally
resolved (including any appeal proceedings)

« inaddition, MGL made an Indemnity and Insurance Deed Poll on
12 September 2007 (Deed Poll). The benefit of the undertakings
made by MGL under the Deed Poll have been given to each of
the directors, secretaries, persons involved in the management
and certain other persons, of MGL and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries (which includes MBL) and other companies where
the person is acting as such at the specific request of MGL
and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. The Deed Poll provides for
broadly the same indemnity and insurance arrangements for
those persons with the benefit of the Deed Poll as for the Deed
described above.

However, the Deed Poll does not provide for access to company
documents. The Deed Poll largely supersedes previous deed polls
which were provided by MBL which were on similar terms. Certain
directors and secretaries still have the benefit of the previous
deed polls.

A Directors’ and Officers’ insurance policy, taken out by Macquarie
Group, is in place that provides cover for each person in favour of
whom such insurance is required to be taken out under the Deed and
the Deed Poll and for MBL in indemnifying such persons pursuant to
the Deed and the Deed Poll. Relevant individuals pay the premium
attributable to the direct coverage under the policy and Macquarie
Group pays the premium attributable to the reimbursement
coverage under the policy. The Directors’ and Officers’ insurance
policy prohibits disclosure of the premium payable under the policy
and the nature of the liabilities insured.

To the extent permitted by law, MBL has agreed to reimburse its
auditor, PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC), for any liability (including
reasonable legal costs) PwC incurs in connection with any claim by
a third party arising from MBL's breach of the letter of engagement
dated 5 July 2023.



Directors’ Report
For the financial year ended 31 March 2024 Continued

Directors’ relevant interests

At the date of this report, none of the Directors held a relevant interest, as required to be notified by the Directors to the Australian
Securities Exchange (ASX) in accordance with the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth), in ordinary shares or share options of MBL. The relevant
interests of Directors in MGL securities, managed investment schemes made available by related companies of MGL and other disclosable
relevant interests are listed in the table below:

Name and position Direct and indirect interests Number held

Executive Voting Director

S.D. Green Macquarie ordinary shares (MQG) 166
Macquarie Group Employee Retained Equity Plan (MEREP) 34,022
Restricted Share Units (RSUs)™
MEREP Performance Share Units (PSUs)® 31,428
Macquarie Private Infrastructure Fund units 90,000
S.R. Wikramanayake MQG 1,175,897
MEREP RSUs" 509,300
MEREP PSUs® 97,751
MAFCA Investments Pty Ltd ordinary shares 2,000,000
Independent Directors
J.R. Broadbent AC MQG 16,062
Macquarie Group Capital Notes 3 (MCN3) 7177
Macquarie Group Capital Notes 4 (MCN4) 4,000
Macquarie Bank Capital Notes 2 (BCN2) 1,500
W.S. Byres MQG 1,001
P.M. Coffey MQG 8,895
Walter Scott Global Equity Fund units 408,699.89
M.J. Coleman MQG 7,480
M.A. Hinchliffe MQG 2,800
S.J. Lloyd-Hurwitz MQG 880
R.J. McGrath MQG 3,817
M. Roche MQG 7,000
1.M. Saines MQG 1,500
Macquarie Core Australian Fixed Interest Fund units 787,224.4758
G.R. Stevens AC MQG 5,847
D.J.K. Whiteing MQG =

(1) These RSUs and PSUs were issued pursuant to the MEREP and are subject to the vesting, forfeiture and other conditions applied to grants of awards to Executive Directors,
as described in Note 29 Employee equity participation to the financial statements in the Financial Report.
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Board and Board Committee meetings and attendance

The number of meetings of the MBL Board of Directors (the Board) and of the Committees of the Board and the individual attendance by
Directors at those meetings which they were eligible to attend as members, during the financial year, is summarised in the table below. The
table excludes the attendance of those Directors who attended the Board Committee meetings of which they were not a member:

Financial Report

Further Information

Committee Regular Board BAC BCC BGCC BRC BRIiC  Special Board
membership meetings® meetings®®  meetings® meetings®® meetings™?  meetings®® meetings®
Number of meetings 10 7 10 5 7 6 1
Chair and Executive Directors
G.R. Stevens AC o 10/10 10/10 1/1
S.D. Green o 10/10 9/10 1/1
S.R. Wikramanayake 10/10 11
Non-Executive Directors
J.R. Broadbent AC® (c] ] 10/10 7/7 4/4 1/1
W.S. Byrest o 2/2 2/2
P.M. Coffey [ Ic] 10/10 5/5 6/6 1/1
M.J. Coleman® 00000 10/10 77 10/10 5/5 3/3 3/3 1/1
M.A. Hinchliffe (c] ] 10/10 /7 5/5 1/1
S.J. Lloyd-Hurwitz® o0 6/6 4/4 3/3 1/1
R.J. McGrath® 000 10/10 5/5 4/4 6/6 1/1
M. Roche 000 10/10 /7 /7 6/6 1/1
.M. Saines 000 10/10 10/10 77 6/6 1/1
D.J.K Whiteing® 0000 6/6 4/4 6/6 2/3 3/3 1/1
Former Non-Executive Director
N.M. Wakefield Evans AM© @ @ @ 4/4 3/3 2/2 2/2
Key
(© Committee Chair @ Board Audit Committee @ Board Conflicts Committee

@ Board Governance & Compliance Committee

@ Board Remuneration Committee

@ Board Risk Committee

The Chair of the Board, the MBL CEO and the MGL CEO receive a standing invitation for all Board Committee meetings and attend as they
consider appropriate. All Board members are sent Board Committee meeting agendas and may attend any meeting.

There was one Board sub-committee convened during the period, with two meetings held. Both meetings were attended by all eligible
sub-committee members, being Mr Stevens, Mr Green, Ms Wikramanayake, Ms Hinchliffe and the Chief Financial Officer (CFO), Mr Harvey.

(1) Number of meetings attended by the member/total number of meetings eligible to attend as a member.
(2) There was one meeting of the relevant committee that was a joint meeting during the year.

(3) Ms Broadbent became a member of the Board Risk Committee on 28 July 2023.
(4) Mr Byres was appointed to the Board as an Independent Voting Director and became a member of the Board Conflicts Committee on 1 February 2024.
(5)  Mr Coleman ceased to be a member of the Board Risk Committee and became a member of the Board Remuneration Committee on 27 September 2023.
(6) Ms Lloyd-Hurwitz was appointed to the MBL Board as an Independent Voting Director and became a member of the Board Audit Committee and Board Remuneration Committee

on 28 July 2023.

(7) Ms McGrath ceased to be a member of the Board Remuneration Committee and became Chair of the Board Governance and Compliance Committee on 28 July 2023.

(8) Mr Whiteing was appointed to the Board as an Independent Voting Director and became a member of the Board Audit Committee, Board Conflicts Committee, Board Governance
and Compliance Committee and Board Risk Committee on 27 September 2023.

(9) Ms Wakefield Evans retired from her role as an Independent Voting Director of the MBL Board on 27 July 2023.
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Directors’ experience and special responsibilities

GlennR
Stevens AC

BEc (Hons) (Sydney),
MA (Econ) (UWO)

Resides: New South Wales

Independent Chair of MBL
and MGL since May 2022
Independent Voting Director
of MBL and MGL since
November 2017

Mr Stevens is a member of
the BCC

Experience

Glenn Stevens worked at the highest levels of the Reserve
Bank of Australia (RBA) for 20 years and, as well as developing
Australia’s successful inflation targeting framework for
monetary policy, played a significant role in central banking
internationally. Most recently, he was Governor of the Reserve
Bank of Australia between 2006 and 2016.

Mr Stevens has also made key contributions to a number of
Australian and international boards and committees, including
as chair of the Australian Council of Financial Regulators
between 2006 and 2016, as a member of the Financial Stability
Board and on a range of G20 committees.

Other current directorships/appointments
« Board member, NSW Treasury Corporation
» Director, Anika Foundation

 Director, Lowy Institute

 Deputy Chair, Temora Aviation Museum

Stuart D

Green

BA (Hons) (UCL), MBA (CUL
Business School), FCA, FCT

Resides: New South Wales
Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer of MBL
since July 2021

Executive Voting Director of
MBL since July 2021

Mr Green is a member of
the BCC

Experience

Stuart has been Managing Director and CEO of Macquarie
Bank Limited since July 2021.

Stuart joined Macquarie Group in 2001 and worked in the
Corporate and Asset Finance group, responsible for originating
asset financing transactions for Macquarie Group. In 2002, he
assumed responsibility for investor relations for Macquarie
Group’s listed airport fund, Macquarie Airports, before moving
to become Global Head of Investor Relations for Macquarie
Group’s portfolio of listed funds. In 2008 he was appointed
Macquarie Group’s Head of Corporate Communications and
Investor Relations, responsible for managing Macquarie
Group's relationships with investors and analysts, government
and media.

Stuart was appointed Group Treasurer in August 2013, a role
he held until July 2021, when he became Managing Director
and Chief Executive Officer of Macquarie Bank Limited.

Prior to joining Macquarie Group, Stuart worked in the UK as

a Chartered Accountant in public practice for BDO Binder,
where he obtained his professional qualifications, and

later in a number of corporate roles as head of finance and
corporate strategy.

From 2010 to 2020, Stuart served on the Board of the Juvenile
Diabetes Research Foundation (JDRF) where he was Treasurer
and Chair of the Finance and Audit Committee.

Other current directorships/appointments
» Member, Australian Banking Association Council

« Director, Financial Markets Foundation for Children
» Member, Macquarie Group Foundation Committee
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Shemara R

Wikramanayake
BCom LLB (UNSW)

Resides: New South Wales

Managing Director and Chief
Executive Officer of MGL
since December 2018

Executive Voting Director
of MBL and MGL since
August 2018

Experience

Shemara Wikramanayake has been Macquarie Group’s
Managing Director and CEO since late 2018.

Shemara joined Macquarie Group in 1987 in Macquarie

Capital in Sydney. In her time at Macquarie Group, Shemara
has worked in six countries and across several business lines,
establishing and leading Macquarie Group’s corporate advisory
offices in New Zealand, Hong Kong and Malaysia, and the
infrastructure funds management business in the US and
Canada. Shemara has also served as Chair of the Macquarie
Group Foundation.

As Head of Macquarie Asset Management for 10 years before
her appointment as CEO, Shemara led a team of 1,600 staff in
24 markets. Macquarie Asset Management grew to become a
world-leading manager of infrastructure and real assets and a
top 50 global public securities manager.

Before joining Macquarie Group, Shemara worked as a
corporate lawyer at Blake Dawson Waldron in Sydney. She
holds Bachelor of Commerce and Bachelor of Laws degrees
from UNSW and completed the Advanced Management
Program at Harvard Business School in 1996.

Other current directorships/appointments

 Founding Member, Glasgow Financial Alliance for Net
Zero (GFANZ)

 Founding Member, Climate Finance Leadership Initiative;
Co-Chair, CFLI India

« Founding Commissioner, Global Commission on Adaptation

* Member, UK Investment Council

» Member, International Advisory Panel, Monetary Authority
of Singapore

* Member, World Bank Private Sector Investment Lab

« Member, Global Investors for Sustainable Development
Alliance

Financial Report Further Information
Gender diversity
Female: Male:

5 8

Board tenure

B Directors

Board independence

85% :eiremer .
PR LR R R
SRR R
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Directors’ experience and special responsibilities

Continued

JillianR
Broadbent AC
BA (Maths &
Economics) (Sydney)

Resides: New South Wales

Independent Voting Director
of MBL and MGL since
November 2018

Ms Broadbent is Chair of
the BRC and a member
of the BRiC

Experience

Jillian Broadbent has extensive investment banking industry
knowledge and markets expertise, including a deep knowledge
of risk management and regulation in these areas. She

also has considerable executive management and listed
company board experience. Ms Broadbent spent 22 years at
Bankers Trust Australia until 1998, initially as an economic
strategist and then as executive director responsible for risk
management and derivatives in foreign exchange, interest
rates and commodities.

Ms Broadbent was also a Member of the Reserve Bank of
Australia Board between 1998 and 2013 and has previously
served as Chair of the Board of Clean Energy Finance
Corporation (CEFC), and as a director of ASX Limited, SBS,
Coca Cola Amatil Limited, Woodside Petroleum Limited,
Qantas Airways Limited, Westfield Management Limited,
Woolworths Group Limited and the National Portrait Gallery
of Australia.

Other current directorships/appointments

« Director, Lowy Institute

« Director, National Portrait Gallery Board Foundation
« Director, Seaborn, Broughton & Walford Pty. Limited
« Director, Sydney Dance Company
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Wayne S

Byres

BEc (Hons) (MQ), MAppFin
(MQ), GAICD, SFFin

Resides: New South Wales

Independent Voting Director
of MBL since February 2024

Mr Byres is a member
of the BCC

Experience

Mr Byres has significant experience in domestic and
international bank regulation, risk management, governance
and public policy as a former Chair of the Australian Prudential
Regulation Authority (APRA) and Secretary General of the
Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. He was also a
member of the Australian Council of Financial Regulators,

and served as APRA’s representative on the Reserve Bank of
Australia’s Payments System Board.

Other current directorships/appointments

« Advisor on banking and financial matters, International
Monetary Fund
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Philip M

Coffey

BEc (Hons) (Adelaide),
GAICD, SF Finsia

Resides: New South Wales

Independent Voting Director
of MBL and MGL since
August 2018

Mr Coffey is Chair of
the BRiC and a member
of the BGCC

Experience

Phil Coffey served as the Deputy Chief Executive Officer (CEO)
of Westpac Banking Corporation, from April 2014 until his
retirement in May 2017. As the Deputy CEO, Mr Coffey had
the responsibility for overseeing and supporting relationships
with key stakeholders of Westpac including industry

groups, regulators, customers and government. He was also
responsible for the Group’s Mergers & Acquisitions function.
Prior to this role, Mr Coffey held a number of executive
positions at Westpac including Chief Financial Officer and
Group Executive, Westpac Institutional Bank.

He has successfully led operations based in Australia,

New Zealand, the United States, the United Kingdom and

Asia and has extensive experience in financial markets,

funds management, balance sheet management and risk
management. He began his career at the Reserve Bank of
Australia and has also held executive positions at AIDC Limited
and Citigroup. Mr Coffey previously served as a director of
Clean Energy Finance Corporation.

Listed company directorships (last three years)

« Director, Lendlease Group (Lendlease Corporation
Limited and Lendlease Responsible Entity Limited)
(since January 2017)

Other current directorships/appointments
« Director, Goodstart Early Learning Ltd

Michael J
Coleman

MCom (UNSW), FCA,
FCPA, FAICD Life

Resides: New South Wales

Independent Voting Director of
MBL since November 2012

Mr Coleman is a member of the
BAC, BCC, BGCC and BRC

Experience

Mr Coleman retired as a partner of KPMG in 2011, following

a 40-year career, 30 of which were as partner. As partner, Mr
Coleman was lead signing partner on major audit clients and a
member of the National Executive.

Mr Coleman’s former roles have included his role as
non-executive director and Chair of the Audit Committee of
Macquarie Group Limited from 2012 to 2022 and Chair of the
Audit Committee of Macquarie Bank Limited from 2012 to 2022.
He has made a significant contribution to the Australian Institute
of Company Directors as a former National Board Member, Chair
of the Audit, Finance & Investment Committee, NSW Councillor
and Chair of the Reporting Committee. Mr Coleman has been the
Chair of Bingo Industries Limited and was a member of the Audit
Committee of the Reserve Bank of Australia.

Listed company directorships (last three years)

« Chair, Bingo Industries Limited (March 2017-August 2021)

« Director, Macquarie Group Limited (November 2012-July 2022)

Other current directorships/appointments

» Director and Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee,
Legal Aid NSW

 Deputy Chair, Planet Ark Environmental Foundation

» Governor and Chair of the Audit and Risk Committee,
Centenary Institute of Cancer Medicine & Cell Biology

* Member, Nominations and Governance Committee,
Chartered Accountants Australia and New Zealand

» Member, Reporting Committee, Australian Institute of
Company Directors

« Chair, Advisory Council, Foundation for National Parks
and Wildlife

« Member, Advisory Council, Climate Governance Initiative
Australia
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Continued

Michelle A
Hinchliffe
BCom (UQ), FCA, ACA

Resides: United Kingdom

Independent Voting Director
of MBL and MGL since
March 2022

Ms Hinchliffe is Chair of
the BAC and a member
of the BGCC

Experience

Michelle Hinchliffe has more than 35 years’ professional
experience within the financial services sector in the United
Kingdom and Australia, with extensive experience in leading
large global teams in the provision of external audit, internal
audit and advisory services to clients across financial services.

Michelle was the Global Lead Audit Partner for a number of
global banking institutions as well as the Head of Audit, KPMG
UK from September 2017 to April 2019 and then Chair of
Audit, KPMG UK from May 2019 to September 2021. During
the period from May 2019 to February 2022 she was a board
member of KPMG UK. Prior to this she was the Head of
Financial Services for KPMG Australia, where she was also a
member of the board.

Listed company directorships (last three years)
« Director, BHP Group Limited (since March 2022)
Other current directorships/appointments

« Director, Santander UK plc
« Director, Santander UK Group Holdings plc
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Susan J
Lloyd-Hurwitz

BA (Hons) (USYD),

MBA (Distinction), INSEAD

Resides: New South Wales

Independent Voting Director
of MGL since June 2023 and
MBL since July 2023

Ms Lloyd-Hurwitz is a
member of the BAC and BRC

Experience

Susan Lloyd-Hurwitz has significant expertise in the
global investment and real estate sectors. She served
as the CEO of Mirvac for more than a decade and prior
to that was the Managing Director of Europe for LaSalle
Investment Management.

Susan was the National President for the Property Council of
Australia, a director of the Business Council of Australia, and
Chair of the Green Building Council of Australia.

Listed company directorships (last three years)

« Chief Executive Officer and Managing Director, Mirvac
Group (November 2012-June 2023)

« Director, Rio Tinto Limited (since June 2023)

Other current directorships/appointments

« Director, Rio Tinto plc

« Director, Spacecube Pty Ltd

« Director and President, Chief Executive Women

« Chair, Advisory Board, Gender Equality and
Inclusion @ Work

« Chair, Australian National Housing Supply &
Affordability Council

* Global Board member, INSEAD

» Member, Sydney Opera House Trust
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Rebecca J

McGrath

BTP (Hons) (UNSW), MAppSc
(ProjMgt) (RMIT), FAICD

Resides: Victoria

Independent Voting Director
of MBL and MGL since
January 2021

Ms McGrath is Chair of

the BGCC and a member

of the BRiC

Experience

Rebecca McGrath is an experienced professional company
director and Chair, with substantial international business
experience. She spent 25 years at BP plc where she held
various executive positions, including Chief Financial Officer
Australasia and served as a member of BP’s Executive
Management Board for Australia and New Zealand.

Ms McGrath has served as a director of Goodman Group, CSR
Limited, Big Sky Credit Union and Incitec Pivot Ltd, and as
Chair of Oz Minerals Limited, Scania Australia Pty Limited and
Kilfinan Australia. She is a former member of the JP Morgan
Advisory Council. She has attended executive management
programmes at Harvard Business School, Cambridge
University and MIT in Boston.

Listed company directorships (last three years)

« Chair, 0Z Minerals Limited (May 2017-May 2023); Director
(November 2010-May 2023)

« Director, Goodman Group (April 2012-February 2023)

« Director, Djerriwarrh Investments Limited (since
January 2024)

Other current directorships/appointments

e Chair, Investa Commercial Property Fund (ICPF)

« Chair, Investa Office Management Holdings Pty Limited

« Chair, Investa Wholesale Funds Management Limited

» Director, Melbourne Business School Limited

« Member, National Board, Australian Institute of
Company Directors

* Member, The Australian British Chamber of Commerce
Advisory Council

« Member, ASIC Corporate Governance Consultative Panel

Mike

Roche

BSc (UQ), GAICD,
FIA (London), FIAA

Resides: New South Wales

Independent Voting Director
of MBL and MGL since
January 2021

Mr Roche is a member of the
BAC, BRC and BRiC

Experience

Mike Roche has over 40 years’ experience in the finance sector
as a highly skilled and experienced provider of strategic,
financial, mergers and acquisitions, and capital advice to major
corporate, private equity and government clients. He held
senior positions with AXA Australia as a qualified actuary and
Capel Court/ANZ Capel Court.

Mr Roche spent more than 20 years at Deutsche Bank and
was Head of Mergers and Acquisitions (Australia and New
Zealand) for 10 years where he advised on major takeovers,
acquisitions, privatisations, and divestments. He stepped
down as Deutsche Bank’s Chair of Mergers and Acquisitions
(Australia and New Zealand) in 2016. He was a member of the
Takeovers Panel for two terms from 2008 to 2014.

Listed company directorships (last three years)

« Director, Wesfarmers Limited (since February 2019)
Other current directorships/appointments

« Director, MaxCap Group Pty Ltd

« Director, Te Pahau Management Ltd

» Managing Director, M R Advisory Pty Ltd
« Co-founder and Director, Sally Foundation
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lan M

Saines

BCom (Economics)
(UNSW), FAICD

Resides: New South Wales

Independent Voting Director
of MBL since June 2022

Mr Saines is Chair of the
BCC and a member of the
BRC and BRiC

Experience

lan Saines is an experienced leader in commercial and
investment banking and asset management, having held
senior roles at Commonwealth Bank of Australia, Challenger,
Zurich Financial Services and Bankers Trust Australia. He
began his career at the Reserve Bank of Australia and has a
strong background in financial markets and highly regulated
environments combined with audit, risk and investment
committee experience.

Mr Saines was formerly a director of Father Chris Riley’s Youth
off the Streets, a not-for-profit organisation providing support
to chronically homeless and abused youth in our society and

a director of the Australian Financial Markets Association
(AFMA) from 2008 until 2013.

Other current directorships/appointments
« Director, Air Lease Corporation
 Director, NSW Treasury Corporation
 Deputy Chair, United States Studies Centre

« Member, Sydney Corporate and Philanthropic Council,
The Salvation Army Australia

e Member, Advisory Council, Catholic Schools of Broken Bay
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B David JK
Y Whiteing
BBusSci (UCT)

Resides: New South Wales

Independent Voting
Director of MBL since
September 2023

Mr Whiteing is a member
of the BAC, BCC,
BGCC and BRiC

Experience

Mr Whiteing has over 30 years of experience leading business
and technology strategies across multiple sectors through
periods of significant change. He has worked globally, including
four years as Global Chief Operating Officer for Standard
Chartered based in Singapore, various senior consulting

roles in London and five years as a Group Executive at the
Commonwealth Bank of Australia. Mr Whiteing was previously
the Managing Director of Data and Cyber Transformation at
Singtel Optus Pty Limited.

Other current directorships/appointments
« Director, Silicon Quantum Computing Pty Ltd
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Company secretaries’
qualifications and experience

Simone Kovacic
BBus LLB (Hons) (UTS), LLM (Sydney), FGIA

Company Secretary since December 2022

Experience

Simone Kovacic is a Division Director of Macquarie Group,
having joined in 2009. Simone has responsibility for Macquarie
Group’s, including MBL's, company secretarial requirements
and provides advice on governance and certain corporate
matters, including aspects of Macquarie Group’s employee
equity plans. She has over 20 years’ experience as a corporate
lawyer with Macquarie Group and, prior to Macquarie Group,
worked in private practice at Skadden, Arps, Slate, Meagher &
Flom LLP in the US and Freehills, now Herbert Smith Freehills.

Olivia Shepherd
BCM (UoW), BCom (UoW), MSc (LSBU), FGIA

Assistant Company Secretary since December 2022

Experience

Olivia Shepherd is a Division Director of Macquarie Group.
Olivia has company secretarial responsibilities and provides
corporate governance advice. She has over 15 years’ company
secretarial and governance experience with Macquarie Group
and Investec Bank plc in the UK.

Financial Report

Further Information
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Executive Committee

Stuart Green
Managing Director
Chief Executive Officer of MBL

Shemara Wikramanayake
Managing Director
Chief Executive Officer of MGL

Evie Bruce
Group General Counsel
Head of Legal and Governance Group

Chief Executive Officer of MBL
since July 2021

Member of Executive Committee since
1 July 2021

Experience

Stuart has been Managing Director and CEO
of Macquarie Bank Ltd since July 2021.
Stuart joined Macquarie Group in 2001 and
worked in the Corporate & Asset Finance
group, responsible for originating asset

financing transactions for Macquarie Group.

In 2002, he assumed responsibility for
investor relations for Macquarie Group’s
listed airport fund, Macquarie Airports,
before moving to become Global Head of
Investor Relations for Macquarie Group’s
portfolio of listed funds. In 2008, he was
appointed Macquarie Group’s Head of
Corporate Communications and Investor
Relations, responsible for managing
Macquarie Group’s relationships with
investors and analysts, government

and media.

Stuart was appointed Group Treasurer in
August 2013, a role he held until July 2021,
when he became Managing Director and
CEO of Macquarie Bank Limited.

Prior to joining Macquarie Group,

Stuart worked in the UK as a Chartered
Accountant in public practice for BDO
Binder, where he obtained his professional
qualifications, and later in a number of
corporate roles as head of finance and
corporate strategy.

From 2010 to 2020, Stuart served on the
Board of the Juvenile Diabetes Research
Foundation where he was Treasurer and
Chair of the Finance & Audit Committee.

Chief Executive Officer of MGL since
August 2018

Member of Executive Committee since
1 August 2008

Experience
Shemara has been Macquarie Group’s

Managing Director and CEO since late 2018.

Shemara joined Macquarie Group in 1987
in Macquarie Capital in Sydney. In her time
at Macquarie Group, Shemara has worked
in six countries and across several business
lines, establishing and leading Macquarie
Group’s corporate advisory offices in New
Zealand, Hong Kong and Malaysia, and

the infrastructure funds management
business in the US and Canada. Shemara
has also served as Chair of the Macquarie
Group Foundation.

As Head of Macquarie Asset Management
for 10 years before her appointment as
CEO, Shemara led a team of 1,600 staff in
24 markets. Macquarie Asset Management
grew to become a world-leading manager
of infrastructure and real assets and a top
50 global public securities manager.
Shemara sits on the World Bank’s Global

Commission on Adaptation and was
a founding CEO of the United Nations

Climate Finance Leadership Initiative (CFLI).

She currently leads emerging markets
workstreams for CFLI and the Glasgow
Financial Alliance for Net Zero (GFANZ).

Member of Executive Committee since
2 March 2022

Experience

Evie has been the Group General Counsel
and Head of the Legal and Governance
Group since March 2022.

Evie is a lawyer with nearly 30 years’
practice and management experience,
across ANZ, Asia and the US, specialising in
mergers and acquisitions, capital markets,
and the financial services sector.

Prior to joining Macquarie Group, Evie
worked for King & Wood Mallesons where
she led the law firm’s extensive global
engagement with Macquarie Group’s
businesses for a number of years.

Evie is a member of Corporations
Committee of the Law Council of
Australia, Law Society of New South
Wales, and State Bar of New York. Evie is
also a member of the Macquarie Group
Foundation Committee.



About

Andrew Cassidy
Chief Risk Officer
Head of Risk Management Group

Directors’ Report

Alex Harvey
Chief Financial Officer
Head of Financial Management Group

Financial Report

Further Information

Gender diversity
Female: Male:

3 5

Committee tenure

Member of Executive Committee since
1 January 2022

Experience

Andrew was appointed Chief Risk Officer
in early 2022.

After joining Macquarie Group in 2004,
Andrew spent over 15 years working in
Macquarie Capital, across various roles
including leadership of Macquarie Group’s
principal investment activity in Asia Pacific.
He joined the Risk Management Group

in 2019 and has overseen the continued
strengthening of Macquarie Group’s

risk framework.

Andrew also manages the Internal
Audit function jointly with the Board
Audit Committee.

Chair of the Macquarie Group Foundation
Member of Executive Committee since
1 January 2018

Experience

Alex has been Head of Financial
Management Group and the Chief Financial
Officer of Macquarie Group since 2018.

Alex joined Macquarie Group in 1998 and
was the CEO of Macquarie Group Asia from
2011 to 2014 and Executive Chair of the
region until this year.

Before being appointed CFO, Alex

was the Global Head of the Principal
Transaction Group in Macquarie Capital
and a member of Macquarie Capital’s
Management Committee.

Alex has more than 30 years’ experience
in the financial services industry across
Australia, Asia, Europe and the US.

In January 2022, Alex became Chair of the
Macquarie Group Foundation.

B Committee members
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Executive Committee

Nicole Sorbara
Chief Operating Officer
Head of Corporate Operations Group

Greg Ward

Head of Banking and Financial
Services Group

Simon Wright
Head of Commaodities and
Global Markets Group

Member of Executive Committee since
1 January 2013

Experience

Nicole is Head of Corporate Operations
Group and has been Global Chief Operating
Officer since 2013.

Nicole leads a global team across 25
countries covering Digital Transformation
& Data, Technology, Operations, Human
Resources, Business Services, Corporate
Strategy & Solutions, and the Macquarie
Group Foundation.

During her time at Macquarie Group, she
has worked across various roles in finance,
Macquarie Capital and was previously the
Head of Human Resources.

Nicole is a Chartered Accountant with more
than 30 years’ experience in accounting
and financial services. She joined Macquarie
Group in 1996.

Nicole is Chair of the Board of PCYC NSW.

Member of Executive Committee since
3 March 2005

Experience

Greg has been Head of Banking and
Financial Services Group since July
2013 and Deputy Managing Director of
Macquarie Group Limited since 2011.

Greg joined Macquarie Group in 1996, the
year the organisation became publicly
listed, and during his tenure has driven the
growth of Macquarie Group’s retail financial
services business. He has over 30 years’
experience in finance and financial services.

Chief Financial Officer for 14 years before
being appointed Deputy Managing
Director of Macquarie Group, Greg was
also Chief Executive Officer of the Group’s
banking subsidiary, Macquarie Bank, from
2011 to 2013.

Member of Executive Committee since
1 April 2024

Experience

Simon was appointed Head of Commodities
and Global Markets in February 2024 and is
responsible for its global business offering
capital and financing, risk management,
market access, and physical execution and
logistics solutions across Commodities,
Financial Markets and Asset Finance.

He is also Head of the Financial Markets
division within Commodities and Global
Markets, which provides Fixed Income,
Currencies and Credit Market services to
corporate and institutional listed derivates.

Since joining Macquarie Group in 1989,
Simon has held a number of senior roles
within Commodities and Global Markets,
while leading the build and oversight of
Macquarie Group’s global Financial Markets
platform. He was appointed Head of CGM
Australia in 2012.

Simon holds a Bachelor of Economics from
Sydney University.
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Remuneration Report

Introduction

Macquarie Bank Limited is a subsidiary of Macquarie
Group Limited (MGL). Whilst the Macquarie Group
remuneration framework applies to all staff including
those within the Bank Group, the Board oversees

the remuneration policies applicable to Macquarie
Bank staff and approves remuneration outcomes
relating to the senior executives of Macquarie Bank. To
support the Board on these processes, the Board has
a Remuneration Committee (BRC), with two Bank-only
Non-Executive Directors (BONDs) among its members.

As noted in the MBL CEO’s letter, Macquarie Bank’s businesses
collectively delivered a solid net profit contribution, against a less
certain economic backdrop.

In less supportive markets, financial results in FY2024 are

down from a record FY2023. Consistent with our established
remuneration framework that rewards performance across a range
of financial and non-financial measures, total profit share awarded
to staff is substantially down on the prior year.

The Board believes its longstanding and consistent approach to
remuneration has served us well and has been a key driver of our
ongoing success as an international organisation. Nevertheless,
the BRC continues to review and adjust our approach to ensure the
remuneration framework remains fit for purpose and balances the
evolving expectations of all our stakeholders.

(1) Stakeholders include MBL's ultimate parent, MGL and its shareholders.

40

Changes to our remuneration framework, including those previously

announced in the 2022 and 2023 Remuneration Reports, have

been implemented for FY2024 to meet the requirements of APRA

Prudential Standard CPS 511 Remuneration (CPS 511). These

changes are referenced throughout the relevant sections of this

report and include:

« fixed remuneration increases, effective 1 April 2023, the first
since 2010, other than adjustments made at the time of a new
appointment to the Executive Committee

« areduction in retention rates and vesting periods (to reflect that
awards from FY2024 will no longer be accelerated over two years
in the case of retirement or redundancy and will instead vest on
their original vesting schedule).

These changes are reflected in the remuneration outcomes for
Executive KMP.

We engaged with APRA during the year in regard to our
implementation of CPS 511 and remain committed to ensuring the
MBL remuneration framework complies with, and considers the
spirit and intent of, CPS 511 and remains fit for purpose.

In addition, there were further enhancements to MBL’s
remuneration governance arrangements, with the appointment of
a second BOND to the BRC. This has enhanced the focus on MBL in
the oversight, design and determination of remuneration outcomes
for MBL staff.
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Remuneration framework

This section explains the link between our purpose, our remuneration objectives and principles, and how these are reflected in the
remuneration framework.

Macquarie Group’s purpose statement, ‘Empowering people to This framework has been fundamental in ensuring we can continue
innovate and invest for a better future,’ articulates why Macquarie to attract, motivate and retain exceptional and entrepreneurial
exists and what we do. It supports the What We Stand For principles people with deep industry expertise across the 19 markets in which
of Opportunity, Accountability and Integrity, which express how we operate. These people come from organisations that broadly
we do business. Macquarie Bank’s longstanding and consistent operate in the same markets and compete for the same people as
approach to remuneration continues to support this purpose and Macquarie in various industry sectors (including global investment
aligns with the What We Stand For principles. banks, commaodity houses and other banks, as well as industries

that are not specific to banking or financial services, for example,

Macquarie Bank's remuneration framework has been a key driver technology, accounting, and engineering) across many jurisdictions.

of our sustained success as an international organisation. Staff

are motivated to grow businesses over the medium to long-term, This broad approach has been in place since Macquarie Bank’s
taking accountability for all decisions and their accompanying risk inception and is reviewed regularly to ensure the framework
management, customer, economic and reputational outcomes. continues to meet our remuneration objectives and aligns with our

remuneration principles and the expectations of our stakeholders.

The table below shows the link between our purpose, What We Stand For principles and our remuneration objectives and principles.

Our purpose:
Empowering people to innovate and invest for a better future

(\g) Opportunity @ Accountability ﬁ Integrity
v ==
E — Remuneration objectives Q Remuneration principles
Macquarie Bank’s remuneration framework is designed to: These objectives are achieved by:
 attract, motivate and retain exceptional people with deep » emphasising performance-based remuneration
industry expertise  determining an individual’s variable remuneration based on a
« deliver strong company performance over the short and range of financial and non-financial factors
long-term whilst prudently managing risk « having the ability to adjust performance-based remuneration
» promote effective management of financial and non-financial to reflect risk outcomes, where appropriate
risks, and Macquarie Bank’s long-term soundness « retaining a significant proportion of performance-based
« align the interests of staff and MBL's stakeholders to deliver remuneration to enable risk outcomes to be considered over a
sustained results for our customers, clients and community longer period
» promote innovation and the building of sustainable businesses « delivering retained profit share in MGL equity to ensure the
« drive behaviours that reflect the best interests of Macquarie interests of staff and MBL's stakeholders are aligned over
Bank, its culture, and the principles of What We Stand For and the long-term
support the prevention and mitigation of conduct risk « remunerating high-performing staff appropriately, relative to
« foster a diverse, equitable and inclusive work environment. global peers

 providing consistent arrangements over time to give staff the
confidence to pursue multi-year initiatives.
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Remuneration framework for FY2024

The remuneration framework operates as an integrated whole. An individual’s remuneration comprises fixed remuneration, profit share and,

for Executive Committee members (our Executive KMP), Performance Share Units (PSUs).

The table below and diagram opposite summarise the framework for FY2024.

FY2024 remuneration framework

Fixed remuneration

« primarily comprises base salary, as well as superannuation contributions and standard country-specific benefits in line with local

market practice

« for Executive KMP, is set at a comparatively low level, relative to the industry, and is a low proportion of total remuneration but

sufficient to avoid inappropriate risk-taking
« isreviewed annually and reflects technical and functional expertise, role scope, market practice and regulatory requirements
« for risk and financial control staff, is generally a higher proportion of total remuneration than for revenue-generating staff.

Performance-based remuneration

Criteria
Eligibility .

Determination -

AN N
'y @

Structure D

O
ofo

gz

Forfeiture .
(X

Malus .
and Clawback .

Profit share

all permanent employees

allocations reflect an individual’s performance,

which is assessed against a range of financial and

non-financial factors including:

— financial/business results

— risk management and compliance

— business leadership including outcomes for
customers and the community

— people leadership and professional conduct

significant proportion is retained (60% for the
MBL CEO, 70% for the MGL CEO and 50% for other
Executive KMP)

long deferral periods (three to five years for the
MBL CEO, MGL CEO and other Executive KMP)
retained profit share is invested in a combination
of MGL equity and Macquarie-managed

fund equity

malus applies to all awards

clawback applies to all Executive KMP and certain
employees identified under CPS 511 or UK and
European remuneration regulations

retained profit share is subject to forfeiture upon
leaving the Macquarie Group except in certain
circumstances

Performance Share Units

Executive Committee members

individual allocations reflect their role as members
of the Executive Committee and their contribution
to driving the collective performance of MBL and
the Macquarie Group

allocations are based on the face value of shares
on the grant date

allocations are subject to Board discretion

PSUs are structured as Deferred Share Units (DSUs)
with no exercise price?

PSUs vest after five years for the MBL CEO and
MGL CEO and four years for other Executive KMP,
subject to the achievement of two performance
hurdles (no retesting of hurdles) and, new from
FY2024, a pre-vest assessment (see page 49)

PSU holders have no right to dividend

equivalent payments

malus and clawback apply to all awards

unvested PSUs are subject to forfeiture upon
leaving the Macquarie Group except in certain
circumstances

(2) ADSUis a Deferred Share Unit and is an award type under the Macquarie Group Employee Retained Equity Plan (MEREP). For further details, refer to Note 29 Employee equity
participation to the financial statements in the Financial Report.
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The diagram below illustrates the long time horizons over which performance-based remuneration for Executive KMP is determined,
delivered and subject to risk adjustments.

For the MBL CEO and MGL CEO

Financial Year +1 +2 +3 +4 +5 +6 +7

Available
MBL CEO: 40% ()
MGL CEO: 30%

Profit One-third released ®
SUEWE Retained (equity)
MBL CEO: 60% One-third released ®
MGL CEO: 70%
One-third released ®

PSUs released

PSU allocation Hurdles tested after four years ? S 25
: pre-vest
: assessment
For other Executive KMP
Financial Year +1 +2 +3 +4 +5 +6 +7
Available
50% B
Profit One-third released ®

Share
Retained (equity)

50% One-third released ®

One-third released ®

Hurdles tested after
PSU allocation four years, PSUs released @
subject to pre-vest assessment

D
~<

@ Payment or vesting (shortly after the end of the relevant year) Period subject to malus Period subject to clawback
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Profit share

This section describes the way in which profit share is determined, structured and delivered.

Annual process to determine profit share outcomes

Profit share allocations are determined through a principles-based approach, which considers individual, business group and company-wide
performance. At all levels, profit share determinations take into account risk management, compliance and conduct.

Individual profit share allocations

Individual profit share allocations reflect an employee’s performance against their objectives, which are formally assessed annually. At the
beginning of the performance cycle, employees set performance objectives based on four factors (three non-financial and one financial),
as relevant to their role. At the end of the year, permanent employees are required to have a formal Year in Review conversation with their
manager. The Year in Review comprises two core components:

« What was achieved over the past 12 months, measured against their objectives under the four factors

 How the objectives were achieved, measured against Macquarie’s cultural/behavioural standards.

The below table outlines the areas considered under each factor when assessing performance and determining remuneration outcomes.

Financial/ « for revenue-generating staff, based on individual contribution to business profitability (including consideration of
business results capital and risk-adjusted returns)
« for risk and financial control staff, primarily based on delivery of or contribution to high-quality risk and control
functions, services and outcomes
« for other Central Service Group staff, delivery of or contribution to high quality services to support the businesses
« for all staff, the management of costs and investment in people and technology to ensure the ongoing robustness
of the risk management framework.
Risk management + demonstrating and applying a strong understanding of relevant regulatory obligations
and compliance « theidentification, escalation, ownership and successful management of MBL-specific financial and non-financial
risks including compliance with Banking licence requirements and obligations, prudential standards, the Banking
Executive Accountability Regime (BEAR) and the Financial Accountability Regime (FAR)
« motivating a culture of disciplined risk management, and regulatory, policy and business compliance
» the management of MBL's funding and capital management strategy and the MBL liquidity and stress
testing frameworks
« fostering an environment where staff feel comfortable to admit mistakes and raise issues or concerns.
Business « focuses on sustainable business growth and innovation by prioritising long term and scalable solutions over
leadership tactical fixes
« delivering appropriate solutions and services to our customers and the communities in which we operate
» maintaining and leveraging relationships with external and internal stakeholders (includes regulators, customers,
clients, communities and suppliers)
» seeking out and valuing collaboration and diverse perspectives (internally and externally), including collaborating
with others to solve issues and challenges across Operating and Central Service Groups.

People leadership « upholding Macquarie’s What We Stand For values and complying with all operational requirements, regulatory
and professional obligations, relevant laws, policies and procedures, including the Code of Conduct
conduct « promoting institutional knowledge-sharing talent development and succession planning

« fostering a diverse, equitable and inclusive work environment, including alignment with Macquarie’s DEI strategy
« for all people managers, performance against a people management objective aligned to our purpose and culture.

Three of these four factors are non-financial, with considerations given to each in varying proportions to reflect an individual’s role and
responsibilities. Individual profit share allocations also consider relativities in the markets in which each business competes for talent.

When determining individual profit share allocations, consideration is given to any matters raised in the independent reports provided to the
BRC by the Chief Risk Officer (CRO) and the Head of Internal Audit, or matters raised through the consequence management process, which
may result in downward adjustments to profit share allocations for relevant individuals (see page 55). Significant judgement is applied in
determining remuneration outcomes to ensure all factors that may potentially impact the quantum of profit share allocations are considered.
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Financial Report Further Information

The initial business group profit share pools are determined through a combination of a top-down and bottom-up approach. The
company-wide profit share pool is an aggregate of the assessments conducted at both the business group and individual level.

The profit share pools reflect consideration of the factors below:

Operating/Central Service Group level

Financial performance

For Operating Groups:

* contribution to
company-wide profits

* returns on economic and
regulatory capital

« funding requirements
and usage.

For Central Service Groups,
based on the quality and
integrity of control functions
and support services and not

Risk management

* risk profile of the business
(e.g. capital usage) .

« extent and nature of financial
and non-financial risks
including any significant

reputational, cultural or .
compliance matters
 regulatory environment .
and regulatory risk
considerations. .

Business-specific
considerations .

Market position and trends
overall remuneration levels
in the market in which each
business operates

staff retention
considerations.

innovation, new business
development (including
acquisitions) and maturity of
the business

reliance on intellectual versus
financial capital

customer, client and

community outcomes

impact of one-time

gains/losses.

primarily determined with
reference to profitability.

Macquarie Group/Macquarie Bank level

Additional considerations at a Macquarie Group and Macquarie Bank level include:

- profitability, including the balance of profit distribution between employees and shareholders

« capital metrics (including prudential ratios) and liquidity considerations

« impact of the profit share pool on Macquarie Bank’s capital position and the ability to strengthen its capital base, as confirmed by the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO)

« reasonableness of the resultant estimated compensation expense to income ratio and how it compares to that of external comparators

* regulatory considerations, including any company-wide risk and conduct matters

« factors that impact the macro environment in which Macquarie Bank operates, including those that may affect its ability to attract and
retain high-performing staff

« CRO and Head of Internal Audit confirmation as to whether there have been any matters of systemic concern during the year.

The Board retains discretion to amend the profit share pool as determined in accordance with the above process to ensure all relevant
factors, including risk and conduct matters, have been appropriately taken into consideration.
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Continued

Retained profit share: retention and vesting

A percentage of each individual's annual profit share allocation is retained (retained profit share) above certain thresholds. While they

are employed, an individual’s retained profit share vests and is released over a period that reflects the scope and nature of their role and
responsibilities.®) These arrangements ensure that Macquarie Bank continues to retain high-performing staff, provide significant long-term
alignment to shareholders and customers, as well as enable risk outcomes to be considered over a longer period.

Retention and vesting arrangements are determined by the BRC according to prevailing market conditions, remuneration trends, and
regulatory requirements (including CPS 511, the Banking Executive Accountability Regime (BEAR) and the Financial Accountability Regime
(FAR)). For each year’s allocation, once the vesting period has been determined it remains fixed for that allocation.

As previously announced, there have been changes to the retention rates and vesting periods for certain senior employees (including the MBL
CEO, MGL CEO, Executive KMP and other roles specified under CPS 511) for profit share allocations made in respect of FY2024 onwards.

The table below summarises the standard retention and vesting arrangements applicable for FY2024. These vesting periods do not include
the performance year but begin following the date remuneration is awarded.

Standard profit share retention and vesting arrangements for FY2024

Profit share retention (%) Vesting and release of profit share
MBL CEO 60
MGL CEQ 70 o
. - One-third in each of years 3-5
Executive Committee members 50
Other Executive Directors® 40
Staff other than Executive Directorsi®:® 25-40 One-third in each of years 2-4

The Board’s discretion to change remuneration arrangements, as noted above, includes changes to profit share retention levels provided that
at least 30% of profit share is retained for all Executive Directors.

(3) Profit share that is not retained (available profit share) is delivered in cash except for certain staff subject to requirements under UK or European remuneration regulations, where
50% of available profit share is delivered in Macquarie equity and is subject to either a 6-month or 12-month hold period, as applicable.

(4) Other Executive Directors include staff other than the CEOs and Executive KMP who are specified under CPS 511 as Senior Managers or Material Risk Takers.

(5)  For certain staff subject to UK or European remuneration regulations, up to 60% may be retained. Retained profit share invested in Macquarie equity may be subject to a further
6-month or 12-month hold post the vesting period.

(6) Above certain monetary thresholds.
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Investment of retained profit share

An individual’s retained profit share is invested in a combination of MGL ordinary shares under the Macquarie Group Employee Retained
Equity Plan (MEREP) and Macquarie-managed fund equity notionally invested under the Directors’ Profit Share (DPS) Plan.” The allocation
reflects the nature of their role and responsibilities as set out in the table below.

Standard investment of retained profit share for FY2024

Retained profit share investment

MEREP DPS Plan
Role (MGL ordinary shares) % (Macquarie-managed fund equity) %
MBL CEO and MGL CEO 90 10
Executive Committee members 80-90 10-20
Other Executive Directors® 80-100 0-20
Staff other than Executive Directors 100 0

In addition to the arrangements set out in the tables above, different arrangements may apply in certain circumstances:

« retention rates and vesting and release schedules may vary for certain groups of staff who have become employees as a result of an
acquisition, or for staff in certain jurisdictions, for example in the UK or European Union (EU), to ensure compliance with local regulatory
requirements

* inlimited circumstances, and only with the approval of the BRC, retained profit share may be allocated under arrangements other than
the MEREP or the DPS Plan. For example, this may include investment in funds or products of a specific business group where there is a
need to directly align the interests of staff with those of their clients.

Forfeiture - malus and clawback

The Board has the ability to reduce or eliminate unvested retained profit share in certain circumstances (malus). In FY2024, the population
subject to malus was expanded to include all staff (previously malus applied to senior employees). For certain employees identified under CPS
511 or UK and European remuneration regulations, the Board also has the ability to recover (in whole or in part) vested profit share in certain
circumstances (clawback). For more details on Macquarie Bank’s malus and clawback framework, see page 54.

Vesting and release of retained profit share upon departure from the Macquarie Group

The standard policy is that staff who cease employment with the Macquarie Group will forfeit their unvested retained profit share. The
Board may exercise discretion for the vesting and release of a departing employee’s retained profit share after their employment has ended
including, for example, in the case of retirement from Macquarie, redundancy, death, serious incapacitation, disability, or serious ill-health.
Where such discretion is exercised, the release of any profit share may be subject to malus and/or clawback, as applicable, and the Board
may impose such other conditions as it considers appropriate. For Executive Directors, the Board’s discretion for the vesting and release of
retained profit share under these circumstances is subject to the conditions of release as set out below.

Discretion may be exercised in certain other limited exceptional circumstances on the grounds of business efficacy, in relation to strategic
business objectives, including in connection with the divestment or internalisation of Macquarie Bank businesses, or when an employee
resigns to fulfil a public service role in a governmental organisation or agency. This year there were no executives for whom such discretion
was exercised.

(7) Both the MEREP and DPS Plan are fundamental tools in Macquarie Bank's retention, alignment and risk management strategies, encompassing both long-term retention
arrangements and equity holding requirements. The MEREP has a flexible plan structure that offers different types of equity grants depending on the jurisdiction in which the
participating employees are based. In most cases, the equity grants are in the form of units comprising a beneficial interest in MGL ordinary shares held in a trust for the staff
member (Restricted Share Units or RSUs). For further details on the MEREP, refer to Note 29 Employee equity participation to the financial statements in the Financial Report. The
DPS Plan comprises exposure to a notional portfolio of Macquarie-managed funds. Retained amounts are notionally invested over the retention period. This investment is described
as ‘notional’ because Executive Directors do not directly hold securities in relation to this investment.

(8) For certain Executive Directors subject to UK or European remuneration regulations, retained profit share is invested 60% in Macquarie equity and 40% in the DPS Plan.
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Conditions of release to departing Executive Directors - Post Employment Events

Where discretion has been exercised for the vesting and release of retained profit share to a departing Executive Director, the Board may
reduce or eliminate their retained profit share if it is determined that, at any time during their employment or the relevant release periods
after their employment, a Malus Event has occurred (as set out on page 54) or they have:

(a) taken staff to a competitor of the Macquarie Group or been instrumental in causing staff to go to a competitor, or

(b) joined a competitor of the Macquarie Group or otherwise participated in a business that competes with the Macquarie Group.

Each of the above is a Post Employment Event.

For retained profit share awarded in respect of FY2023 and subsequent years, where the release relates to relevant circumstances other
than death or serious disability, the release will occur over the period from 12 months to 24 months after the Executive Director leaves, in
accordance with the table below.©1

For profit share allocations made to Executive KMP and other Executive Directors specified in CPS 511 (including those in risk and financial
control functions) in respect of FY2024 onwards, the release of unvested retained profit share will be kept in line with its original vesting
schedule (where it relates to relevant circumstances other than death or serious disability). This may result in final vesting being up to five
years from the end of employment. There is no change in the timeframe for application of the Post Employment Events set out below.

First Period Second Period

Time post-departure 12 months 12 months to 24 months

Unvested retained From all but the last 24 months of employment From the last 24 months of employment

profit share released

Subject to malus No Malus Event during employment or the First Period ~ No Malus Event during employment, the First Period or

the Second Period

Subject to Post No Post Employment Event during employment or No Post Employment Event during employment or

Employment Events  during the period expiring 6 months following the end  during the period expiring 6 months following the end
of employment, and of employment, and

No Post Employment Event (a) during the period from 6  No Post Employment Event (a) during the period from 6
months to 12 months following the end of employment  months to 12 months following the end of employment

Where the release As above and in addition, the release is subject to no As above and in addition, the release is subject to
is by reason of Post Employment Event (b) during the First Period no Post Employment Event (b) during the First or
retirement from the Second Period

Macquarie Group

In addition to the above, for Accountable Persons under the FAR (Accountable Persons), the exercise of discretion for any release of retained
profit share following the end of employment will be subject to minimum deferral periods. Where an Executive Director has a tax liability on
termination of employment in respect of any unvested retained profit share, the Board has discretion to release unvested retained profit
share up to an amount equal to the Executive Director’s tax liability at an earlier time than noted above subject to any legal or regulatory
requirements.

(9) Inthe case of death or serious incapacitation, the Board will typically accelerate the vesting of retained profit share and immediately release it.
(10) Awards in respect of FY2022 and earlier will remain subject to their original conditions of release to a departing Executive Director, as previously disclosed.
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Performance Share Units

This section describes the way in which PSUs are determined, structured and delivered

Allocation and structure

Executive Committee members are the only staff eligible to receive PSUs, which are determined with reference to Macquarie Group’s
and Macquarie Bank’s performance as a whole. As such they provide an additional incentive to Executive Committee members to drive
company-wide performance over the long-term and beyond their Operating and Central Service Group responsibilities. PSU awards are a
meaningful incentive but are generally not the major element of an Executive Committee member’s total remuneration.

As previously announced, for awards in respect of FY2024 onwards the vesting period for PSUs granted to the MBL CEO and the MGL CEO has
been extended by a year, to five years. In addition, prior to the vesting of PSUs, the Board will conduct a pre-vest assessment of the Executive
Committee’s collective performance over the vesting period. The table below summarises the approach to PSU allocations in respect

of FY2024.

1. Pre-grant period (Financial Year (FY))

» Individual PSU allocations are based on performance over the financial year prior to grant (taking into consideration both financial and
non-financial factors). Considerations include their role as members of the Executive Committee and their contribution to driving the
collective performance of Macquarie Bank, including their collaboration across businesses, progress on company-wide programs and
maintaining Macquarie Bank’s risk culture

 The face value of PSUs awarded to each Executive Committee member is approved by the Board as part of the annual remuneration
review process. Shareholder approval is also sought at MGL's Annual General Meeting (AGM) to allocate PSU awards to the MGL CEO,
who is an Executive Voting Director of MGL

e PSUs are granted in August each year, after MGL's AGM, in respect of the previous financial year. The number of PSUs allocated is
calculated by dividing the face value of the award by the price of MGL ordinary shares on or around the date of grant

» PSUs are structured as DSUs with no exercise price. Holders have no right to dividend equivalent payments.

2. Performance period (FY+1 to FY+4)

 PSUs will only become exercisable to the extent that two equally weighted ROE and EPS performance hurdles are achieved over a
four-year performance period. Details of, and the rationale for, the ROE and EPS hurdles are set out below

 The ROE and EPS performance hurdles attached to PSUs are tested at the end of the performance period and the results are reported
to the BRC(s).

3. Additional vesting period (FY+5)

 For the MBL CEO and MGL CEO, an additional one-year period applies before PSUs may vest following the end of the four-year
performance period
 For other Executive KMP, PSUs may vest on 1 July following the end of the four-year performance period.

4. Pre-vest assessment (At end of vesting period)

* Prior to vesting of PSU awards, the Board will conduct a holistic assessment of the Executive Committee’s collective contribution to
driving the performance of Macquarie Bank over the vesting period, based on the extent to which the Executive Committee has:
— promoted behaviour that is consistent with and reflects Macquarie Bank’s risk culture, Code of Conduct and the principles of What
We Stand For
— overseen the effectiveness of Macquarie’s risk management framework, regulatory compliance, policies and practices in managing
key financial and non-financial risks, and
— overseen funding, liquidity and capital management to ensure Macquarie’s financial soundness.

» Where the Board forms a negative overall assessment of the relevant Executive Committee’s collective performance, it will consider
whether an adjustment is appropriate, taking into account any mitigating and aggravating factors

 To assist the Board with their determination of an adjustment to the PSU vesting outcome, and to ensure that the determination
encompasses all relevant considerations, the BRC will receive regular reporting over the vesting period.
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Performance hurdles

PSUs will only become exercisable to the extent that the following performance hurdles are achieved:

EPS CAGR hurdle ROE hurdle

Application 50% of PSU award

Performance Compound annual growth rate (CAGR) in EPS over the
measure four-year performance period

Hurdle Sliding scale applies:

» 50% becoming exercisable at EPS CAGR of 7.5%

« 100% at EPS CAGR of 12%

For example, if EPS CAGR was 9.75%, 75% of the

relevant awards would become exercisable

50% of PSU award

Relative average annual ROE over the four-year
performance period compared to a reference group of
international financial institutions

The reference group comprises Bank of America
Corporation, Barclays PLC, Citigroup Inc.,

Deutsche Bank AG, Goldman Sachs Group Inc.,

JP Morgan Chase & Co., Lazard Ltd, Morgan Stanley
and UBS AG1{12)

Sliding scale applies:

» 50% becoming exercisable above the 50th percentile
» 100% at the 75th percentile

For example, if ROE achievement was at the 60th
percentile, 70% of the relevant awards would become
exercisable

Rationale for hurdles

The PSU hurdles are periodically reviewed by the BRC to ensure they
continue to align the interests of staff and shareholders and provide
a challenging but meaningful incentive to Executive Committee
members. The BRC’s review includes consideration of the most
relevant performance metrics to be used as hurdles as well as

the levels at which the hurdles are achieved. The international
reference group used for the ROE hurdle is also reviewed to
determine whether our comparators remain suitable for Macquarie
Group’s diversified business interests and global footprint. The BRC
also considers historical and forecast market data, the views of
corporate governance groups, shareholders and regulators, as well
as market practice.

In the FY2024 annual review, both the absolute EPS and relative

ROE hurdles were considered to still be appropriate for the

following reasons:

 EPS and ROE growth drive long-term shareholder value and are
appropriate as the Executive Committee can affect outcomes
on both measures. In contrast, Total Shareholder Return (TSR) is
influenced by many external factors over which executives have
limited control

EPS and ROE can be substantiated using information that is
disclosed in MGL's annual reports

a sliding scale diversifies the risk of not achieving the hurdles and
provides rewards proportionate to performance for shareholders
and is preferable to an all-or-nothing test, which some have
argued could promote excessive risk-taking

the hurdles are designed to reward sustained strong
performance and are relatively well-insulated from short-term
fluctuations

the EPS targets are confirmed as rigorous when market
performance is considered, with the EPS threshold hurdle
exceeding the performance of most of the ASX20, the
international reference group and relevant indices over time

for the EPS element to fully vest, MGL needs to achieve at least
12% CAGR over the vesting period. Supporting the rigour of the
hurdle, cumulative EPS growth of 57% over four years is required
to achieve full vesting

the ROE vesting thresholds and sliding scale are in line with

the domestic market and are particularly challenging when
compared to international practice.

(11) Company comparator information is presented in the same order throughout the Remuneration Report.
(12) For unvested PSU awards made prior to FY2023, the reference group included Bank of America Corporation, Barclays PLC, Credit Suisse, Deutsche Bank AG, Goldman Sachs Inc.,

JP Morgan Chase & Co., Lazard Ltd, Morgan Stanley and UBS AG.
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The charts below display MGL's historical EPS and ROE PSU outcomes, highlighting that since their introduction in 2009, only 48% of the EPS

tranches and 56% of the ROE tranches have resulted in full vesting.
Historical EPS tranche outcomes

No vesting Full vesting

44% / 48%

Partial
vesting

8%

Use of an international reference group

The BRC has given careful consideration to the appropriate
reference group to use for the relative ROE measure, recognising
that Macquarie Group’s combination of business activities, size
and global footprint means that there are few direct comparators.
The BRC’s view is that simplistic comparator groups based on a
company’s country of listing, broad industry categorisation and/or
market capitalisation do not accurately reflect the businesses and
competitive markets for talent in which we operate.

When assessing and determining the appropriate reference group,
the BRC considers the overall size of the reference group, the
degree of internationalisation (including the degree to which they
compete for shareholder capital, clients and talent in each market),
each comparator’s overlap with Macquarie Group’s revenue mix and
the resulting business mix when considered in aggregate. Taking
into account these factors, the BRC has selected an international
reference group that recognises the extent of Macquarie Group’s
diversification and internationalisation.

The BRC is mindful that some of Macquarie Group’s businesses
compete with other types of financial institutions, including asset
managers, retail banks, hedge funds and commodity trading houses.
However, given differences in business mix, regulatory environment,
or the unavailability of public financial information, it does not
consider these institutions appropriate for inclusion in the PSU
reference group.

The BRC considers the international reference group to be

appropriate on the basis that:

« total international income represented approximately 66%
of Macquarie Group’s total income as at 31 March 2024, with
approximately 51% of Macquarie Group’s staff located outside
Australia®?

« the international reference group is currently most
representative of Macquarie Group’s business operations and
talent pool. These firms broadly operate in the same markets and
in similar business segments and compete for the same people
as Macquarie Group

(13) Headcount includes staff employed in certain operationally segregated subsidiaries (OSS).

Historical ROE tranche outcomes

No vesting Full vesting

16% / 56%

Partial
vesting

28%

« theinternational reference group members share broadly
comparable risk, compliance and regulatory profiles

¢ Macquarie Group has no directly comparable
Australian-listed peers.

While the BRC considers it important not to intervene reactively to
remove under-performers or over-performers in order to provide
relative stability and transparency across market cycles, it reviews
and adapts the reference group as companies, markets and other
situations evolve.

Risk adjustment, malus and clawback

The Board may determine that a downward adjustment to PSU
allocations prior to grant may be appropriate, including a collective
adjustment where there has been an adverse outcome for MBL,
MGL or their stakeholders. Risk considerations also form part of the
pre-vest assessment, as set out above.

In addition, Macquarie’s malus and (from FY2024) clawback
provisions, apply to all PSUs granted, as set out on page 54.

Departure from Macquarie or change in control

The standard policy is that unvested PSUs will be forfeited upon
termination of employment. In the case of retirement from
Macquarie, redundancy, death, serious incapacitation, disability,
serious ill-health or other limited exceptional circumstances, the
Board or the BRC has the ability to accelerate the vesting of PSUs
(to the extent permitted by law or regulation, for example in the
case of death or serious incapacitation) or to take other action,
for example to permit the PSUs to continue to vest in accordance
with the original award schedule and remain subject to the same
performance hurdles.

Should a change of control occur the Board or the BRC has
discretion to determine how unvested PSUs should be treated,
having regard to factors such as the length of time elapsed in the
performance and vesting periods, the level of performance to date,
the circumstances of the change in control and any relevant legal or
regulatory requirements.
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Continued

Executive KMP - PSUs vesting during FY2024

The PSUs that completed their performance period on 30 June 2023 comprised the second tranche of those awards granted in 2019.%% The
performance hurdle tests were performed using data sourced from Bloomberg for all companies in the international reference group (as well
as Macquarie) and the calculations were reviewed independently.

The results showed that the performance hurdles:
 based on the EPS CAGR in MGL's reported financial year was partially met, and
« based on MGL's relative average annual ROE compared to the international reference group was fully met.

As a result, 96% of the awards became exercisable on 1 July 2023 as shown below:

EPS CAGR Hurdle ROE Hurdle
MGL result MGL result
PSU tranche  (for vesting period) Hurdle (JTILGT M (for vesting period) Hurdle Outcome
50% above the 50th
2019 11.26% 50% at 7.5% CAGR 92% 15.34% percentile® 100%
Tranche 2 R 100% at 12% CAGR  exercisable (88th percentile) 100% at the 75th ~ exercisable

percentile(?

(14) PSUs awarded prior to FY2020 vested in two equal tranches after three and four years.
(15) International reference group ROE at 50th percentile 12.73% and international reference group ROE at 75th percentile 14.56%.
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Culture, accountability and remuneration

This section describes how risk and conduct are considered throughout the remuneration approach

Risk culture

Our purpose of ‘Empowering people to innovate and invest for a
better future’ and What We Stand For principles of Opportunity,
Accountability and Integrity remain pivotal to our culture. Our
purpose and principles effectively guide our staff in balancing risk
and reward and making decisions that realise opportunity for the
benefit of our clients, shareholders, partners and the communities
in which we operate. Staff are continually made aware that these
principles must form the basis of all behaviours and actions. These
behavioural expectations are outlined in the Board approved

Code of Conduct, which is actively promoted by management and
cascaded through the organisation through multiple mechanisms.
We invest significant time and effort in communicating and
reinforcing our culture through communications from senior
management, policy reminders, training, and learning and
development activities. The Board is able to assess Macquarie
Bank’s culture in a number of ways including through staff survey
results, human capital reporting, strategy presentations, risk
culture reports, consequence management reports as well as
through personal observation of management, and staff behaviour
and actions.

Prudent risk management is a fundamental part of everyone’s role
at Macquarie Bank. Staff understand they are rewarded not just
for their contribution to financial results, but also for how those
results are achieved. This includes an assessment of an individual’s
approach to managing risk, and adherence with the What We
Stand For principles. Staff are aware of the consequences for
non-compliance with the risk management framework and the
Code of Conduct. Staff training and communications emphasise
the link between risk, conduct, policy breaches and consequence
management outcomes, including, where appropriate, adjustments
to performance-based remuneration.

Alignment of remuneration with risk outcomes

The Board considers that the effective alignment of remuneration
with prudent risk-taking is fundamental to Macquarie Bank’s
remuneration approach. To ensure there is appropriate focus on
MBL, MBL-specific risk considerations are embedded throughout
the remuneration process including through the determination

of individual profit share allocations, business group and
company-wide profit share pools as well as through the way in
which remuneration is structured and delivered.

The Board is aware of the increasing focus of regulators and
shareholders on ensuring risk-related matters that come to light
subsequent to remuneration being awarded are appropriately
factored into remuneration decisions. Macquarie Bank’s retention
and vesting arrangements provide a mechanism for the Board to
consider risk outcomes over a longer period. Furthermore, where an
investigation has commenced into a risk or conduct-related matter
that may result in forfeiture, malus or clawback (where applicable
- see page 55), Macquarie Bank may further defer the payment,
vesting and/or release of profit share to allow for the investigation
to be completed.
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Continued

Culture, accountability and remuneration continued

The following mechanisms exist to adjust FY2024 remuneration outcomes for risk and conduct outcomes:

In-year adjustments Applies to all staff

« for profit share, determined as part of assessing an individual’s performance each year, which includes consideration of compliance
with the risk management framework and with the behavioural expectations outlined in the Code of Conduct

» for PSUs, determined as part of the assessment of Executive Committee members’ roles and their contribution to driving the collective
performance of MBL and the Macquarie Group

« in addition, any outcomes from the consequence management process (such as a formal warning) or the independent reporting from
the CRO, Head of Internal Audit, and Group General Counsel (GGC) are also considered for both profit share and PSUs.

Applies to all staff

» where an individual's employment is terminated due to a compliance or conduct concern (or they resign), unvested remuneration is
forfeited, as per our standard policy.

Malus Applies to all staff

Malus provisions provide the Board with the ability to reduce or eliminate in full unvested remuneration (including retained profit share
and for Executive Committee members, unvested PSUs) where it is determined:
« there was a significant error in or a significant misstatement of criteria on which the remuneration determination was based, or
» the employee has at any time:
— engaged in misconduct leading to significant adverse outcomes
— acted dishonestly (including, but not limited to, misappropriating funds or deliberately concealing a transaction)
— significantly failed in or breached their compliance, accountability or fitness and propriety requirements, or
— acted or failed to act in a way that contributed to, and/or by virtue of their role or seniority is accountable for:
— abreach of a significant legal or significant regulatory requirement relevant to Macquarie Bank
— MGL or MBL making a material financial restatement
— MGL, MBL or any Group within Macquarie Group incurring significant reputational harm®
— MGL, MBL or any Group within Macquarie Group incurring a significant unexpected financial loss, impairment charge, cost
or provision
— asignificant failure of financial or non-financial risk management, or
— asignificant adverse outcome for customers, beneficiaries or other stakeholders.

Applies to certain senior employees

Clawback provisions provide the Board with the ability to recover in exceptional circumstances (in part or whole) variable remuneration
that has already been paid or vested for up to two years from the point of payment or vesting, if it is determined that:

« there was a significant error in or a significant misstatement of criteria on which the remuneration determination was based

» the employee has at any time engaged in misconduct leading to significant adverse outcomes

« the employee has at any time significantly failed in or breached their compliance, accountability or fitness and propriety
requirements, or

 the employee has at any time acted or failed to act in a way that contributed to:
— asignificant failure of financial or non-financial risk management, or
— asignificant adverse outcome for customers, beneficiaries or other stakeholders.

Additional provisions may apply to staff in certain jurisdictions to ensure compliance with local regulations. This includes UK and European
staff who are subject to additional malus and clawback provisions under local regulatory requirements.

The BRC considers whether, and the extent to which, to apply malus or clawback, taking into account local employment laws, the nature and
circumstances of the event and any other redress that has been or may be applied.

(16) A “Group within Macquarie Group” is a reference to any Operating Group or Central Service Group within MGL or MBL.
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Risk adjustment processes

There are robust processes in place to ensure that all risk, reputation, and conduct-related matters are specifically considered when
determining remuneration outcomes. These processes may result in a downward adjustment to group and/or individual profit share
allocations where appropriate. A wide range of risks that could have a financial or non-financial impact on Macquarie Bank are considered,
including any detriment to customers or impact on prudential standing.

To assist the Board and BRC when determining remuneration outcomes, independent control functions provide input as follows:

Independent control function input when determining remuneration outcomes

Risk Management Group Internal Audit Legal

The GGC provides a further source of
independent input and, in conjunction
with HR, considers whether there are any
incidents (including any breach of the
BEAR or FAR obligations) that should be
reviewed that might lead to a malus or
clawback determination.

The CRO provides the BRC with an
independent report detailing significant
risk matters (financial and non-financial)

including those relating to incidents, issues,
and regulatory and litigation matters.

The Head of Internal Audit provides the
BRC with an independent report detailing
notable internal audit issues and any trends
at company-wide or business group level.

Human Resources

The Global Head of HR discusses the reports from RMG and Internal Audit with the Group Heads to ensure any matters listed in the
reports are appropriately reflected in remuneration outcomes for relevant staff and provides a report to the joint committee meeting
of the BRC, Board Risk Committee (BRiC), Board Audit Committee (BAC) and Board Governance and Compliance Committee (BGCC)
on how this has been achieved.

The Global Head of HR also annually reports to the BRC on the outcomes from the consequence management process and confirms that
these matters have been considered in determining remuneration and promotion outcomes where appropriate.

Consequence management process

Incidents, breaches of policy and misconduct issues are regularly reported to senior management. There are a number of processes
in place to ensure consistency (across business groups and staff levels) in the application of consequences and the determination of
remuneration outcomes, including the review and challenge by senior management of consequence management outcomes at year end.

Where an investigation has commenced into a risk or conduct-related matter, vesting, payment and/or release of profit share (including
available and/or retained amounts) to an employee may be deferred to allow for the investigation to be completed.

Consequence management outcomes

Macquarie Group’s Consequence Management Guideline applies wherever a breach of internal policy or regulatory requirement is identified,
including where there has been a breach of FAR (or prior to 15 March 2024, BEAR) accountability obligations. Consequences may include
further training, removal of delegated authorities or permissions, adjustments to performance-based remuneration, impact on promotion,
formal warnings or termination.

Where an employee has received a formal warning, their performance-based remuneration will likely be impacted and in some cases, reduced
to zero. Promotion decisions may also be impacted. Impacts may also be applied where a formal warning has not been issued. In each case,
judgement is exercised as to the appropriate consequence(s) based on all the relevant circumstances.

In FY2024, for Macquarie Bank, there were 103 (FY2023: 101) matters involving conduct or policy breaches that resulted in formal
consequences. These included 69 (FY2023: 56) Code of Conduct or appropriate workplace behaviour related matters and 34 (FY2023: 45)
other policy matters including risk management and technology breaches. Of the 103:

« for 38 matters, termination of employment was the outcome (FY2023: 43)

« for 65 matters, a formal warning was issued (FY2023: 58). Additional consequences were applied as appropriate including additional
training, adjustments to profit share and/or proposed fixed remuneration increases and/or impact to promotion (19 individuals who
received a formal warning subsequently left Macquarie Bank before year-end outcomes were applied and 45 individuals had their profit
share reduced by an average of 41%).

The 103 matters were considered isolated incidents and there was no evidence of broader systemic conduct issues.
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Further details on the remuneration framework

This section describes other key features of the remuneration framework and of the employment contracts for Executive

Committee members.

Other features of the remuneration framework

Role-based
allowances

Minimum

shareholding
requirement

Promotion and New

Role-based allowances are a component of fixed remuneration that may be awarded to certain employees,
including those identified as Material Risk Takers under UK or European regulatory requirements. These
allowances are determined based on the role and organisational responsibility of the individuals.

Executive Directors are required to hold a relevant interest in MGL ordinary shares that have a value equal to
5% of an Executive Director’s aggregate profit share allocations for each of the past five years (10 years for
Executive Committee members), which can be satisfied by the profit share retention requirements

For Executive Committee members with a minimum of 10 years of service at the Executive Director level,
compliance with this policy equates to a minimum shareholding requirement of between 70% to 620% of fixed
remuneration based on share values unadjusted for market price changes.

Staff who are promoted to or hired at Associate Director, Division Director or Executive Director level receive an

Hire Awards allocation of MEREP awards set with reference to an Australian dollar value. Currently these awards range from
the equivalent of $A25,000 to $A175,000 depending on the Director level.
Hedging  Macquarie Group prohibits staff from hedging shares held to meet the minimum shareholding requirement and
unvested equity held in the MEREP.
Employment contracts

The following table summarises key features of the employment contracts for Executive Committee members including the MBL CEO.

Length of contract

Remuneration
review period

Profit share
participation

PSU participation

Termination of
employment

Post employment
restrictions

Permanent open-ended.

1 April to 31 March annually.

Executive Committee members are eligible to be considered for a profit share allocation that ensures a large part
of their remuneration is ‘at risk’. Refer to pages 44-48 for details.

Executive Committee members are eligible to receive PSUs. Refer to pages 49-52 for details.

Requires no more than three months’ notice by Macquarie Bank or the Executive Committee member (post
employment restrictions apply).

Restrictions include non-solicitation provisions applicable for six months, and paid non-competition provisions
applicable, at Macquarie Bank’s election, for up to three months post-termination.

Macquarie Bank’s performance

Macquarie Bank’s results
Net profit after tax (NPAT) has decreased 25% compared to the prior year.

20207 2021 2022 2023 2024

NPAT attributable to the ordinary equity holder ($Am) 1,297 1,676 2,717 3,905 2,912

(17) NPAT attributable to the ordinary equity holder reported above relates to continuing operations only. Additional profit of $A164 million in FY2020 is attributable to

discontinued operations.
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Executive KMP remuneration outcomes for FY2024

This section details the process for determining Executive KMP remuneration outcomes for FY2024 and demonstrates the link between

pay and performance.

Process to determine Executive KMP
remuneration outcomes

There is a consistent and comprehensive process for the Board

and the BRC to assess the performance of the MBL CEO and

each Executive KMP during the year to enable them to determine
remuneration outcomes at the end of the year. The Board is always
mindful of the external focus on overall remuneration levels and has
spent considerable time determining remuneration outcomes. The
BRC recognises the range of expectations and has made decisions

that take into consideration the perspectives of all key stakeholders.

Significant judgement is applied to ensure that remuneration
outcomes are aligned both with individual and company-wide
performance and with outcomes delivered to our stakeholders, our
clients and the communities in which we operate.

As part of the Board’s annual review of the MBL CEQ’s performance,
the MBL CEO meets with the Board towards the end of the financial
year to consider formal documentation that outlines his views
of Macquarie Bank’s and his own performance. The presentation
includes a broad range of Macquarie Bank’s activities covering the
following main areas:
« financial/business results
* risk management and compliance
* business leadership including customer and
community outcomes
« people leadership and professional conduct consistent with the
Code of Conduct and the principles of What We Stand For.

Over the course of the year the Board receives regular reports
and updates on many of these areas. These are summarised in the
MBL CEO’s presentation, together with additional information on
matters the Board has identified for further discussion as a part
of the review process. The Non-Executive Directors (NEDs) of the
Board, in conjunction with the MGL CEQ’s input, considers the
MBL CEQ’s performance and progress against all of these topics in
determining his remuneration for the year.

The MGL CEO annually evaluates the performance of the other
Executive KMP and considers the same factors set out above.
The Board and the BRC review formal performance assessment
documentation for each Executive KMP.

For the CRO and CFO, the Board and the BRC seek to ensure

that their performance and remuneration outcomes reflect the
independence and purpose of their functions and have not been
unduly influenced by the performance of wider business activities.

The BRC also considers risk-related matters raised in the
independent reports from the CRO and the Head of Internal Audit.

To ensure all matters are appropriately brought to the BRC'’s
attention and to achieve an integrated approach to remuneration
that reflects prudent and appropriate risk management, there is a
joint meeting of the BRC, BRiC, BAC and the BGCC.

Finally, the BRC considers remuneration levels for organisations that
broadly operate in the same markets and compete for the same
people as Macquarie Bank.

Annual remuneration outcomes reflect:

« achievements against a range of financial and
non-financial factors

« the recognition that our people are our greatest asset, and the
importance of retaining key people to encourage innovation and
pursue growth opportunities

« alignment to the outcomes delivered to MBL's stakeholders

« risk management, compliance and conduct outcomes.

Details on specific factors for FY2024 are discussed below.

Executive KMP fixed remuneration outcomes

In line with our pay for performance approach to remuneration,
fixed remuneration for our Executive KMP in FY2024 comprised
approximately 14% of total awarded remuneration, with the balance
at risk and explicitly linked to performance.

As noted in the 2023 Remuneration Report, fixed remuneration for
Executive KMP in FY2024 increased for the first time since 2010,
other than adjustments made when they were first appointed to
the Executive Committee. The fixed remuneration levels in the
table below include salary and, for Australia-based Executive KMP,
superannuation.

Role FY2023 ($Am) FY2024 ($Am)
MBL CEO 0.7 13
MGL CEO 0.8 15
Executive KMP 0.7-0.75 11

Fixed remuneration remains set at a comparatively low level,
relative to the industry, and at a lower proportion of total
remuneration, but sufficient to avoid inappropriate risk-taking.
No increases are planned for FY2025.
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FY2024 Executive KMP profit share outcomes

The Board’s determination of remuneration outcomes for FY2024

for the MBL CEO and Executive KMP reflect the following factors:

« lower overall financial results compared to the record FY2023,
reflective of the challenging market conditions during the year

« the financial performance of each Operating Group

« the strong leadership of the MBL and MGL Executive Committee,
led by the MBL CEO and MGL CEOQ, to effectively role model our
purpose and principles and to embed a strong risk culture

 Executive Committee collaboration to solve challenges
and maximise opportunities across Operating and Central
Service Groups

« the continued evolution of our businesses to remain well
positioned to deliver long-term sustainable value, including
alignment with areas of structural growth globally (e.g. energy
transition, infrastructure for digital and demographic shifts)

« the continued focus on non-financial risks, including in areas such
as climate, sustainability and technology, while also uplifting
our risk management frameworks across trading, technology,
cyber and data

« afocus on streamlining investment programs and driving
greater returns on investment, following a period of significant
investment in our platform

« investment in renewable energy solutions at scale, supporting
the next wave of climate technologies

« maintaining strong engagement and focus on meeting regulator
expectations including progress against the remediation
program with APRA to ensure there is appropriate focus on
Macquarie Bank

« the refresh of our global employee value proposition to
evolve in line with shifts in talent expectations and ensure we
accurately reflect the career experience and distinct culture that
Macquarie offers.

Executive KMP remuneration outcomes have also been considered
in the context of the wider workforce. The BRC receives extensive
reporting on remuneration outcomes and individually reviews and
approves the remuneration of staff who hold regulated roles and
other senior staff, and has reviewed overall total remuneration
levels across each business to ensure appropriate distribution of
remuneration across the organisation.

Link between ESG considerations
and remuneration outcomes

The Board and management recognise the importance of
sound ESG practices as part of their responsibility to clients,
shareholders, employees and the communities in which
Macquarie operates. The Board’s and the BRC'’s assessment
of each Executive KMP’s performance against the three
non-financial performance factors when determining

profit share outcomes includes progress on relevant ESG
initiatives.

In addition to the process for Executive KMP, ESG
considerations are assessed as part of other employees’
individual performance and remuneration determinations
where relevant to the responsibilities of their role.

More detailed information on our ESG approach,
including our eight focus areas, is available at

macquarie.com/esg


https://www.macquarie.com/about/company/environmental-social-and-governance.html
https://www.macquarie.com/about/company/environmental-social-and-governance.html

About

Remuneration governance

Directors’ Report

Financial Report Further Information

Effective governance is central to Macquarie Bank’s remuneration strategy and approach. The key elements of Macquarie Bank’s

remuneration governance framework are described below.

BOARD

. . Board Risk Committee, Board Audit Committee
Board Remuneration Committee . A
& Board Governance and Compliance Committee

Oversees remuneration policies and practices,
and makes recommendations to the Board

Strong Board oversight

The Board oversees Macquarie Bank’s remuneration framework

and its effective application. The MBL BRC, established in 2022,
works closely with the MGL BRC to assist the Board with its
oversight of remuneration policies and practices applying to staff of
Macquarie Bank.

The BRC currently comprises five independent NEDs including two
independent BONDs, as set out earlier in the Directors’ Report.

The BRC members have the required experience and expertise in
human resources, remuneration and risk to enable them to achieve
effective governance of the remuneration framework. The BRC
has a regular meeting cycle and met seven times during FY2024.
Attendance at meetings by the BRC members is set out on page
27. Strict processes are in place to ensure conflicts of interest are
appropriately managed.

BRC responsibilities

The BRC pays close attention to the design and operation of
remuneration practices for all Macquarie Bank staff, not just for the
most senior executives. The responsibilities of the BRC are outlined

in its Charter, which is reviewed and approved annually by the Board.

Some of the responsibilities include:

« overseeing the process for the annual review by the Board of the
CEOs’ and other Executive KMPs’ performance

« recommending to the Board the remuneration outcomes for all
Executive KMP, other roles specified under CPS 511 and other
senior executives of Macquarie Bank

« assessing the effectiveness of the Remuneration Policy to
ensure compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, as
well as its alignment with Macquarie Bank’s strategy to promote
its sustainable performance in a manner that supports its
long-term soundness

» recommending the Remuneration Policy to the Board
for approval.

Alignment to risk

The BRC liaises with the BRiC, BAC and BGCC to ensure there

is effective co-ordination between the Committees to assist in
producing an integrated approach to remuneration that reflects
prudent and appropriate risk management.

As set out on page 55, the CRO and the Head of Internal Audit
provide the BRC with independent reports detailing significant risk
and internal audit matters (financial and non-financial) including

Macquarie Bank Limited and its subsidiaries 2024 Annual Report

Discusses any relevant matters that may impact remuneration
in a joint meeting with the Board Remuneration Committee

those relating to incidents, issues, and regulatory and litigation
matters. A joint meeting of the BRC, BRiC, BAC and BGCC is held to
discuss these matters, with the CRO and the Head of Internal Audit
in attendance. The GGC attends as required to provide a further
source of independent input, including on matters that might lead
to a malus or clawback determination.

Engagement with external stakeholders

The Chair of the Board and the BRC Chair undertook a series of
meetings with investors and proxy advisors during the year to
communicate our remuneration approach and to hear any concerns
raised by the investor community.

They also engaged with APRA during the year regarding the
implementation of CPS 511.

Independent remuneration review

The MGL and MBL BRCs (the BRCs) have retained Pay Governance
as their independent remuneration consultant, for the use of the
MGL and MBL Boards to obtain advice on the appropriateness of

Macquarie Group’s remuneration framework.

The only service that Pay Governance provides to Macquarie Group
is executive compensation consulting to the BRCs. Pay Governance
has not made any remuneration recommendations, as defined by
the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) (the Act). The BRC is responsible for
making decisions within the terms of its Charter. Pay Governance’s
terms of engagement set out their independence from members of
Macquarie Group’s management. This year, Pay Governance:
» provided information on global remuneration and
regulatory trends
 considered alignment with MGL shareholder interests
« compared individual remuneration for Executive KMP where
relevant comparator company information was available
 considered Macquarie Group’s overall remuneration approach
compared to comparator company organisations.

Pay Governance’s findings included that:

* the objectives of Macquarie Group’s remuneration
framework are similar to those cited by other leading global
investment banks

¢ Macquarie Group’s remuneration components support its
remuneration objectives and principles and are largely consistent
with practices at other leading global investment banks,
including that performance-based remuneration takes risk
management into account.
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Non-Executive Director remuneration

The Board seeks to appoint and appropriately remunerate high calibre NEDs. Reflecting the Board’s role, the remuneration arrangements
applicable to NEDs, as outlined in this section, differ significantly from the arrangements applicable to executives.

Non-Executive Director remuneration Unlike MBL's executives, NEDs are not granted equity, nor are they
eligible to receive profit share payments. There are no termination

payments to NEDs on their retirement from office other than
payments relating to their accrued superannuation contributions
comprising part of their remuneration, if any.

Non-Executive Director fees are set acknowledging the level
required to appropriately remunerate highly qualified NEDs who
have the relevant skills and experience to govern as a member of
the Board.

NEDs may elect to receive their remuneration, in part, in the form of
superannuation contributions over and above the minimum level of
contribution required under applicable legislation.

The NED remuneration framework seeks to remunerate high calibre
directors by:

« setting an overall fee that reflects the scale and complexity

of the Bank Group (being MBL and its subsidiaries) including The Boards resolved during FY2023, that the NEDs of MGL who are
additional risk management and regulatory responsibilities and also members of the MBL Board (Common NEDs) will receive their
the global financial nature of the Bank Group’s activities Board and Board Committee fees for services provided to MGL and

MBL from MGL. The fees paid to Common NEDs in respect of their

« setting MBL Board and Board Committee fees to reflect the time . )
services to MBL are paid as an aggregate fee by MGL.

commitment to meet the responsibilities involved in the annual
scheduled calendar, taking into account market rates for relevant The annual Board and Board Committee fees paid to BONDs are

organisations and market trends received from MBL and set out in the table below.
 paying separate fees for additional responsibilities that may arise

on an ad hoc basis Chair Member
« delivering these fees in a form that is not contingent on the Bank Annual Director Fees AT AT

Group’s performance. Board - 245,000
An internal review of NED fees was completed during the year and Board Audit Committee (BAC) - 37,000
the Board determined, following this review, that the MBL Board Board Conflicts Committee (BCC) 80,000 37,000
and Board Committee fees would remain unchanged. Board Governance and Compliance _ 37,000
The MBL and MGL CEOs are not remunerated separately for acting Committee (BGCC)
as Executive Voting Directors. Board Remuneration Committee (BRC) - 37,000

Board Risk Committee (BRiC) - 37,000

(18) As the Chairs of the Board, BAC, BGCC, BRC and BRiC are each Common NEDs, this amount is received from MGL as part of the relevant Director’s aggregate fee.
(19) This is the aggregate annual fee paid to BONDs, including fees in respect of their attendance at MGL Board and Board Committee meetings.
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Appendix 1: Key Management Personnel (KMP) for FY2024

All the individuals listed below have been determined to be KMP for FY2024 for the purposes of the Act and as defined by AASB 124 Related
Party Disclosures. KMP include Executive Voting Directors and executives with authority and responsibility for planning, directing and
controlling the activities of MBL and its controlled entities (together making Executive KMP) and NEDs. MBL's NEDs are required by the Act
to be included as KMP for the purposes of disclosures in the Remuneration Report. However, the NEDs do not consider themselves part of

management.
Name Position Term as KMP for FY2024
Executive Voting Directors
S.D. Green MBL CEO Full year
S.R. Wikramanayake MGL CEO Full year
Common Non-Executive Directors
J.R. Broadbent AC Independent Director Full year
P.M. Coffey Independent Director Full year
M.A. Hinchliffe Independent Director Full year
S.J. Lloyd-Hurwitz Independent Director Appointed to the Board effective from 28 July 2023
R.J. McGrath Independent Director Full year
M. Roche Independent Director Full year
G.R. Stevens AC Independent Chair Full year

N.M. Wakefield Evans AM

Independent Director

Ceased to be a member of the Board on 27 July 2023

Bank-only Non-Executive Directors

W.S. Byres Independent Director Appointed to the Board effective from 1 February 2024

M.J. Coleman Independent Director Full year

I.M. Saines Independent Director Full year

D.J.K. Whiteing Independent Director Appointed to the Board effective from 27 September 2023

Executives?”

G.N. Bruce GGC, Head of LGG Full year

A. Cassidy CRO, Head of RMG Full year

A.H. Harvey CFO, Head of FMG Full year

N. O’Kane Former Head of CGM Ceased to be a member of the Executive Committee on
27 February 2024

N. Sorbara COO0, Head of COG Full year

G.C. Ward Head of BFS Full year

(20) Except where otherwise indicated, all executives and Executive Voting Directors were members of the Executive Committee as of 3 May 2024. Simon Wright, Head of CGM, was
appointed to the Executive Committee on 1 April 2024.
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Continued

Appendix 2: Executive KMP remuneration disclosure
(in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards)

SHORT-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Salary (including
superannuation)

Performance related
remuneration

Total short-term
employee benefits

Name Position Year $A $A $A
Executive Voting Directors
S.D. Green Macquarie Bank CEO 2024 1,323,893 1,500,000 2,823,893
2023 771,741 1,400,000 2,171,741
S.R. Wikramanayake Macquarie Group CEO 2024 737,075 3,438,697 4,175,772
2023 398,748 3,108,078 3,506,826
Executives
G.N. Bruce® GGC, Head of LGG 2024 594,426 795,708 1,390,134
2023 506,803 761,774 1,268,577
A. Cassidy CRO, Head of RMG 2024 631,114 1,576,993 2,208,107
2023 407,949 951,497 1,359,446
A.H. Harvey CFO, Head of FMG 2024 521,006 1,580,832 2,101,838
2023 345,425 1,432,296 1,777,721
N. Sorbara €00, Head of COG 2024 842,931 2,557,615 3,400,546
2023 569,807 2,362,685 2,932,492
G.C. Ward Head of BFS 2024 1,120,562 5,000,000 6,120,562
2023 771,741 4,000,000 4,771,741
Total Remuneration - Comparable Executive KMP® 2024 5,771,007 16,449,845 22,220,852
2023 3,772,214 14,016,330 17,788,544
Former Executives
N. O’Kane® Former Head of CGM 2024 900,051 - 900,051
2023 638,779 15,070,161 15,708,940
Total Remuneration - Executive KMP 2024 6,671,058 16,449,845 23,120,903
(including former Executives) 2023 4,410,993 29,086,491 33,497,484

(21) Ms Bruce was hired by Macquarie on 1 January 2022 and appointed to the Executive Committee on 2 March 2022. To secure Ms Bruce’s appointment, the Board determined it was
necessary and appropriate to provide competitive remuneration arrangements. This included awarding a minimum profit share allocation of $A2.619 million for the performance
year ending 31 March 2023 (subject to Macquarie’s standard remuneration arrangements) and a minimum PSU allocation of face value $A2.0 million for FY2023 (subject to the
performance hurdles and other conditions applicable to the PSU allocations awarded to other Executive Committee members).

(22) Comparable Executive KMP are KMP who are members of the Executive Committee for the full year in both FY2024 and FY2023.

(23) Mr O'Kane ceased to be a member of the Executive Committee on 27 February 2024 and resigned from Macquarie effective 18 March 2024. In compliance with Macquarie’s
standard remuneration arrangements and as a result of his resignation, Mr O’Kane forfeited his unvested retained profit share and unvested PSUs. In accordance with
accounting requirements this resulted in a net reversal of previously recognised remuneration expense consisting of $A9.1 million for forfeited retention notionally invested in
Macquarie-managed fund equity and $A29.4 million of amortisation for forfeited equity awards during FY2024.
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LONG-TERM EMPLOYEE BENEFITS SHARE BASED PAYMENTS
Earnings on prior Total Percentage of
Restricted  years' restricted Total long-term share-based Total remuneration that
profit share profit share employee benefits ~ Equity awards PSUs payments remuneration  consists of PSUs
$A $A $A $A $A $A $A %
225,000 69,930 294,930 1,295,980 1,276,407 2,572,387 5,691,210 22%
210,000 71,782 281,782 981,118 936,669 1,917,787 4,371,310 21%
802,363 861,657 1,664,020 7,808,563 526,944 8,335,507 14,175,299 4%
1,243,231 1,283,115 2,526,346 7,285,022 1,447,237 8,732,259 14,765,431 10%
79,571 11,184 90,755 360,867 620,105 980,972 2,461,861 25%
114,266 3,370 117,636 267,874 484,071 751,945 2,138,158 23%
157,699 32,156 189,855 745,568 768,061 1,513,629 3,911,591 20%
142,725 22,524 165,249 460,203 495,132 955,335 2,480,030 20%
158,083 128,164 286,247 1,811,346 511,574 2,322,920 4,711,005 11%
214,844 153,571 368,415 1,721,442 837,354 2,558,796 4,704,932 18%
255,761 208,352 464,113 2,939,337 827,671 3,767,008 7,631,667 11%
354,403 254,161 608,564 2,847,256 1,381,282 4,228,538 7,769,594 18%
1,000,000 741,822 1,741,822 4,684,026 838,734 5,522,760 13,385,144 6%
1,200,000 946,218 2,146,218 4,606,203 2,109,455 6,715,658 13,633,617 15%
2,678,477 2,053,265 4,731,742 19,645,687 5,369,496 25,015,183 51,967,777
3,479,469 2,734,741 6,214,210 18,169,118 7,691,200 25,860,318 49,863,072
(9,076,201) 262,941 (8,813,260) (25,634,623) (3,810,064) (29,444,687) (37,357,896) 10%
3,516,371 1,077,434 4,593,805 15,535,259 1,862,649 17,397,908 37,700,653 5%
(6,397,724) 2,316,206 (4,081,518) (5,988,936) 1,559,432 (4,429,504) 14,609,881
6,995,840 3,812,175 10,808,015 33,704,377 9,553,849 43,258,226 87,563,725
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Additional information regarding the statutory remuneration disclosures set out in this Appendix
The remuneration disclosures set out in this Appendix have been 3. Share-based payments:

prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. (@)

Under the requirements of AASB 124 Related Party Disclosures, the
remuneration disclosures for the years ended 31 March 2024 and
31 March 2023 only include remuneration relating to the portion of
the relevant periods that each person was an Executive KMP.

The following information provides more detail regarding some of
the column headings in this Appendix:
1. Short-term employee benefits:
(a) Salary: includes salary, superannuation, any accrual for long
service leave and other benefits.
(b) Performance-related remuneration: this represents the
cash portion of each person’s profit share allocation for the
reporting period as an Executive KMP.

2. Long-term employee benefits:

(a) Restricted profit share: this represents the amount of
retained profit share awarded for the current period that is
deferred to future periods and held as a notional investment (b
in Macquarie-managed fund equity (DPS Plan).

(b) Earnings on prior years' restricted profit share: Profit
share amounts retained under the DPS Plan are notionally
invested in Macquarie-managed funds, providing Executive
Directors with an economic exposure to the underlying
investments. Executive Directors are each entitled to
amounts equivalent to the investment earnings (dividends/
distributions and security price appreciation) on the
underlying securities. The notional returns are calculated
based on Total Shareholder Return. Where these amounts
are positive, they may be paid to Executive Directors and
are included in these remuneration disclosures as part of
‘Earnings on prior years’ restricted profit share. If there is
a notional loss, this loss will be offset against any future
notional income until the loss is completely offset and is
reported as a negative amount in the same column. These
earnings reflect the investment performance of the assets
in which prior years’ retained amounts have been notionally
invested. Their inclusion in the individual remuneration
disclosures on the previous pages may, therefore, cause
distortions when year-on-year remuneration trends
are examined. They do not reflect remuneration review
decisions made about the individual’s current year
performance.

-~

Equity awards including shares: This represents the current
year expense for retained profit share that is invested in
MGL ordinary shares under the MEREP as described on page
47. This is recognised as an expense over the respective
vesting periods, or service period if shorter, as described on
page 46 and includes amounts relating to prior years equity
awards that have been previously disclosed. Equity awards
in respect of FY2024 performance will be granted during
FY2025; however, MGL begins recognising an expense for
these awards (based on an initial estimate) from 1 April
2023. The expense is estimated using the price of MGL
ordinary shares as at 31 March 2024 and the number of
equity awards expected to vest. In the following financial
year, MGL will adjust the accumulated expense recognised
for the final determination of the accounting fair value

for each equity award when granted and will use this
validation for recognising the expense over the remaining
vesting period.

PSUs: This represents the current year expense for PSUs
that is recognised over the vesting period as described

on page 50. This includes amounts relating to prior years’
PSU awards. PSU awards in respect of FY2024 will be
granted during FY2025; however, MGL begins recognising
an expense for these awards (based on an initial estimate)
from 1 April 2023. The expense is estimated using the price
of MGL ordinary shares as at 31 March 2024 and the number
of PSUs expected to vest. The estimate also incorporates
an interest rate to maturity of 3.97% per annum (3.99% for
grants to the MBL CEO and MGL CEOQ), expected vesting date
of 1 July 2028 (1 July 2029 for the MBL CEO and MGL CEO),
and a dividend yield of 3.76% per annum. In the following
financial year, MGL will adjust the accumulated expense
recognised for the final determination of the accounting fair
value for each PSU when granted and will use this validation
for recognising the expense over the remaining vesting
period. Performance hurdles attached to the PSUs allow
for PSUs to become exercisable upon vesting only when the
relevant performance hurdles are met. The current year
expense is reduced for previously recognised remuneration
expense where performance hurdles have not been met,
have been partially met or are not expected to be met.
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Appendix 3: Non-Executive Director remuneration

The remuneration arrangements for all the persons listed below as NEDs are described on page 60 of the Remuneration Report. Common
NEDs receive their entire Board and Board Committee fees from MGL. Further information on the total aggregate fee paid to Common NEDs
by MGL can be found on page 143 of the Remuneration Report in the MGL Annual Report.

Fees Other benefits Total compensation
Year $A $A $A
Common Non-Executive Directors?*
J.R. Broadbent AC® 2024 199,282 - 199,282
2023 189,000 - 189,000
P.M. Coffey®® 2024 205,250 - 205,250
2023 207,500 - 207,500
M.A. Hinchliffe®” 2024 205,250 - 205,250
2023 194,489 - 194,489
S.J. Lloyd-Hurwitz?® 2024 147,356 - 147,356
2023 - - -
R.J. McGrath® 2024 204,282 - 204,282
2023 198,333 - 198,333
M. Roche 2024 202,250 - 202,250
2023 198,333 - 198,333
G.R. Stevens ACE 2024 467,500 - 467,500
2023 436,452 - 436,452
N.M. Wakefield Evans AM©2 2024 69,392 - 69,392
2023 222,917 - 222,917
P.H Warne®? 2024 - - -
2023 50,269 - 50,269
Bank-only Non-Executive Directors
W.S Byres®® 2024 47,000 - 47,000
2023 - - -
M.J. Coleman® 2024 393,000 - 393,000
2023 315,134 - 315,134
I.M. Sainest®® 2024 399,000 - 399,000
2023 316,228 - 316,228
D.J.K. Whiteing®" 2024 200,867 - 200,867
2023 - - -
Total Remuneration - Non-Executive KMP 2024 2,740,429 - 2,740,429
2023 2,328,655 - 2,328,655

(24) Common NEDs receive their entire Board and Board Committee fees from MGL. For further information on the total aggregate fees paid to each of the Common NEDs, please refer
to page 143 of the Remuneration Report in the 2024 MGL Annual Report.

(25) Ms Broadbent ceased to be a member of the MBL and MGL BRiCs on 1 June 2022 and was reappointed as a member of the MBL and MGL BRIiCs on 28 July 2023.

(26) Mr Coffey ceased to be a member of the MBL and MGL BACs and became a member of the MBL and MGL BGCCs on 1 June 2022.

(27) Ms Hinchliffe ceased to be a member of the MBL and MGL BRiCs on 1 June 2022. She became a member of the MBL and MGL BGCCs and Chair of the MBL and MGL BACs on
28 July 2022.

(28) Ms Lloyd-Hurwitz was appointed to the MBL and MGL Boards as an Independent Voting Director on 28 July 2023 and 1 June 2023, respectively. She became a member of the MBL
and MGL BACs and BRCs on 28 July 2023.

(29) Ms McGrath became a member of the MBL and MGL BRCs on 1 June 2022. She ceased to be a member of the MBL and MGL BRCs and was appointed Chair of the MBL and MGL
BGCCs on 28 July 2023.

(30) Mr Roche became a member of the MBL and MGL BACs on 1 June 2022.

(31) Mr Stevens became Chair of the MBL and MGL Boards on 10 May 2022. He ceased to be a member of the MBL and MGL BACs and BRiCs on 1 June 2022.

(32) Ms Wakefield Evans ceased to be a member of the MBL and MGL Boards on 27 July 2023 and 29 February 2024, respectively. She ceased to be Chair of the MBL and MGL BGCCs
and a member of the MBL and MGL BRiCs on 27 July 2023.

(33) Mr Warne retired from his roles as Chair and Independent Voting Director of the MBL and MGL Boards on 9 May 2022.

(34) Mr Byres was appointed to the MBL Board as an Independent Voting Director and became a member of the MBL BCC on 1 February 2024.

(35) Mr Coleman ceased to be a member of the MGL Board, the MBL and MGL BACs and the MGL BRIC, BGCC and BNC on 28 July 2022. He became a member of the MBL BCC on
28 July 2022; and was re-appointed to the MBL BAC on 2 March 2023. He ceased to be a member of the MBL BRIC and became a member of the MBL BRC on 27 September 2023.

(36) Mr Saines was appointed to the MBL Board as an Independent Voting Director and became a member of the MBL BRiC and BRC on 1 June 2022. He became a member of the MBL
BCC on 28 July 2022 and was appointed Chair of that Committee on 29 August 2022.

(37) Mr Whiteing was appointed to the MBL Board as an Independent Voting Director and became a member of the MBL BRiC, BCC, BAC and BGCC on 27 September 2023.



Remuneration Report

Continued

Appendix 4: Loan disclosures

Loans to Key Management Personnel and their related parties
Details of loans provided by Macquarie Bank to KMP and their related parties are disclosed in the following table.

Balance as at Interest Balance as at Highest balance
1 April 202368 charged Write downs 31 March 2024%% during the year
Name and Position $A'000 $A'000 $A'000 $A'000 $A'000
Non-Executive Directors
N.M. Wakefield Evans AM (related party) 4,489 36 - 4,439 4,489
D.J.K. Whiteing - 22 - 2,500 2,500
Executives
A. Cassidy 3,568 157 - 3,428 3,568
A.H. Harvey 8,000 197 - 7,500 8,000
Aggregate of KMP and related party loans“? 16,111 412 - 17,909 18,612

This Remuneration Report has been prepared in accordance with the Act. The Remuneration Report contains disclosures as required by AASB
124 Related Party Disclosures as permitted by Corporations Regulation 2M.3.03 Prescribed details.

Throughout this Remuneration Report financial information for Macquarie Group and Macquarie Bank relating to the years ended

31 March 2020 through to 31 March 2024 has been presented in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards. Compliance with
Australian Accounting Standards ensures compliance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB).

(38) Or date of appointment if later.

(39) Or date of ceasing to be a KMP if earlier.

(40) The aggregate of KMP and related party loans includes all loans to KMP (including their related parties) and the table above details KMP (including their related parties) with loans
above $A100,000 during FY2024. All loans provided by Macquarie Bank to KMP are made in the ordinary course of business on an arm’s length basis and are entered into under
normal terms and conditions consistent with other customers and employees. There have been no write-downs or allowances for doubtful debts.
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Non-audit services

Fees paid or payable to PwC, being the auditor of the Consolidated
Entity, for non-audit services during the year ended 31 March 2024
total $A10.3 million (2023: $22.4 million). Further details of
amounts paid or payable to PwC and its related practices are
disclosed in Note 38 Audit and other services provided by
PricewaterhouseCoopers in the Financial Report.

The Voting Directors are satisfied that the provision of non-audit
services did not compromise the auditor independence
requirements of the Act for the following reasons:

« the operation of the Consolidated Entity’s Audit and Assurance
Independence Policy, restricts the external auditor from
providing non-audit services under which the auditor assumes
the role of management, becomes an advocate for the
Consolidated Entity, audits its own professional expertise, or
creates a mutual or conflicting interest between the auditor and
the Consolidated Entity. The policy also provides that significant
permissible non-audit assignhments awarded to the external
auditor must be approved in advance by the BAC or the BAC
Chair, as appropriate

« the BAC has reviewed a summary of non-audit services provided
by PwC, including details of the amount paid or payable, and has
provided written advice to the Board of Directors.

Consistent with the advice of the BAC, the Voting Directors are
satisfied that the provision of non-audit services during the year by
the auditor and its related practices is compatible with the general
standard of independence for auditors imposed by the Act.

This report is made in accordance with a resolution of the Directors.

o Rl _

Glenn Stevens AC
Independent Director and Chair

Stuart Green

Managing Director and Chief Executive Officer

Sydney
3 May 2024

e

pwc

Auditor’s independence declaration

As lead auditor for the audit of Macquarie Bank Limited for the year

ended 31 March 2024, | declare that to the best of my knowledge

and belief, there have been:

(i) no contraventions of the auditor independence requirements of
the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth) in relation to the audit, and

(ii) no contraventions of any applicable code of professional
conduct in relation to the audit.

This declaration is in respect of Macquarie Bank Limited and the
entities it controlled during the financial year.

%%@

Voula Papageorgiou
Partner
PricewaterhouseCoopers

Sydney
3 May 2024

PricewaterhouseCoopers, ABN 52 780 433 757

One International Towers Sydney, Watermans Quay, Barangaroo,
GPO BOX 2650, SYDNEY NSW 2001

T: +61 2 8266 0000, F: +61 2 8266 9999

Liability limited by a scheme approved under
Professional Standards Legislation
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About Directors’ Report

Income statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2024

Financial Report

Further Information

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2024 2023 2024 2023
Notes $m $m $m $m
Interest and similar income

Effective interest rate method 2 12,946 7,958 12,756 7,968
Other 2 624 281 576 248
Interest and similar expense 2 (10,439) (5,599) (10,242) (5,819)
Net interest income 3,131 2,640 3,090 2,397
Net trading income 2 5,270 7,387 3,146 3,585
Fee and commission income 2 2,591 2,317 971 892
Net credit impairment reversals/(charges) 2 34 (116) 62 (122)
Net other impairment reversals/(charges) 2 15 2 (32) (41)
Net other operating income 2 525 561 1,059 2,324
Net operating income 11,566 12,791 8,296 9,035
Employment expenses 2 (4,911) (4,758) (1,493) (1,408)
Brokerage, commission and fee expenses 2 (594) (520) (513) (431)
Non-salary technology expenses 2 (942) (890) (189) (173)
Other operating expenses 2 (1,044) (1,212) (2,698) (2,685)
Total operating expenses (7,491) (7,380) (4,893) (4,697)
Operating profit before income tax 4,075 5,411 3,403 4,338
Income tax expense 4 (1,163) (1,506) (994) (581)
Profit attributable to the ordinary equity holder of Macquarie Bank Limited 2,912 3,905 2,409 3,757

The above income statements should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Macquarie Bank Limited and its subsidiaries 2024 Annual Report
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Statements of comprehensive income
For the financial year ended 31 March 2024

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2024 2023 2024 2023
Notes $m $m $m $m
Profit after income tax 2,912 3,905 2,409 3,757
Other comprehensive income/(loss):!
Movements in items that may be subsequently reclassified to the income
statement:
Fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) reserve:
Revaluation movement 25 (24) (6) - (43)
Changes in expected credit losses (ECL) allowance 25 (2) 2 (13) (3)
Cash flow hedges reserves:
Revaluation movement 25 22 65 25 92
Transferred to income statement on realisation 25 (33) 19 (39) 2
Cost of hedging reserves:
Revaluation movement 25 (35) (33) (30) (30)
Transferred to income statement on realisation 25 13 14 13 14
Foreign exchange movement on translation and hedge accounting of foreign 25
operations 197 562 196 551
Shares of reserves in associates and Other reserves 43 2 - -
Movements in item that will not be subsequently reclassified to the income
statement:
Fair value changes attributable to own credit risk on debt designated at fair 25
value through profit or loss (DFVTPL) (9) 1 (8) 2
Others 1 3 (1) 2
Total other comprehensive income 173 629 143 587
Total comprehensive income attributable to the ordinary equity
holder of Macquarie Bank Limited 3,085 4,534 2,552 4,344

The above statements of comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

! All items are net of tax, where applicable.
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Statements of financial position

As at 31 March 2024
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2024 2023 2024 2023

Notes $m $m $m $m
Assets
Cash and bank balances 28,055 41,612 22,799 36,176
Cash collateralised lending and reverse repurchase agreements 49,575 43,201 47,637 42,844
Trading assets 6 26,628 15,792 25,507 14,457
Margin money and settlement assets 7 16,627 19,375 13,757 14,518
Derivative assets 8 23,766 35,820 19,566 27,175
Financial investments 9 18,974 16,899 18,595 14,719
Held for sale and other assets 10 8,107 6,278 4,327 4,152
Loan assets 11 156,736 141,760 154,670 140,085
Due from subsidiaries 27 - - 10,111 18,314
Due from other Macquarie Group entities 27 4,784 4,421 4,058 3,887
Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets 13 5,835 4,577 4,125 3,428
Investments in subsidiaries 14 - - 4,803 4,774
Deferred tax assets 15 1,076 1,088 516 672
Total assets 340,163 330,823 330,471 325,201
Liabilities
Cash collateralised borrowing and repurchase agreements 12,599 18,737 12,547 17,928
Trading liabilities 16 4,937 4,754 4,937 4,757
Margin money and settlement liabilities 17 22,269 21,913 19,239 17,364
Derivative liabilities 18 25,283 32,522 23,060 27,421
Deposits 19 148,340 134,648 146,500 133,661
Other liabilities 20 10,280 7,627 6,012 3,963
Due to subsidiaries 27 - - 22,650 28,716
Due to other Macquarie Group entities 27 12,288 14,642 11,878 12,374
Issue debt securities and other borrowings 21 71,939 66,082 51,883 49,010
Deferred tax liabilities 15 22 23 - 25
Total liabilities excluding loan capital 307,957 300,948 298,706 295,219
Loan capital 23 10,825 9,523 10,825 9,523
Total liabilities 318,782 310,471 309,531 304,742
Net assets 21,381 20,352 20,940 20,459
Equity
Contributed equity 24 10,184 10,161 10,021 10,013
Reserves 25 1,238 1,057 571 419
Retained earnings 25 9,959 9,134 10,348 10,027
Total capital and reserves attributable to the ordinary equity holder of
Macquarie Bank Limited 21,381 20,352 20,940 20,459
Total equity 21,381 20,352 20,940 20,459

The above statements of financial position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Statements of changes in equity
For the financial year ended 31 March 2024

Contributed Retained Total

equity Reserves earnings equity

Notes $m $m $m $m
CONSOLIDATED

Balance as at 1 Apr 2022 9,562 432 7,974 17,968
Profit after income tax - - 3,905 3,905
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - 625 4 629
Total comprehensive income 9,562 1,057 11,883 22,502
Dividends paid 5 - - (2,749) (2,749)
Contribution of ordinary equity by the equity holder 24 600 - - 600
Other equity movements 24 (1) - - (1)
599 - (2,749) (2,150)

Balance as at 31 Mar 2023 10,161 1,057 9,134 20,352
Profit after income tax - - 2,912 2,912
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - 181 (8) 173
Total comprehensive income - 181 2,904 3,085
Dividends paid 5 - - (2,079) (2,079)
Other equity movements 24 23 = = 23
23 = (2,079) (2,056)

Balance as at 31 Mar 2024 10,184 1,238 9,959 21,381
COMPANY

Balance as at 1 Apr 2022 9,416 (164) 9,015 18,267
Profit after income tax - - 3,757 3,757
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - 583 4 587
Total comprehensive income 583 3,761 4,344
Dividends paid 5 - - (2,749) (2,749)
Contribution of ordinary equity by the equity holder 24 600 - - 600
Other equity movements 24 (3) - - (3)
597 - (2,749) (2,152)

Balance as at 31 Mar 2023 10,013 419 10,027 20,459
Profit after income tax - - 2,409 2,409
Other comprehensive income, net of tax - 152 (9) 143
Total comprehensive income - 152 2,400 2,552
Dividends paid 5 - - (2,079) (2,079)
Other equity movements 24 8 = = 8
8 - (2,079) (2,071)

Balance as at 31 Mar 2024 10,021 571 10,348 20,940

The above statements of changes in equity should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Statements of cash flows
For the financial year ended 31 March 2024

CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2024 2023 2024 2023
Notes $m $m $m $m
Cash flows (utilised in)/generated from operating activities
Interest income and expense:
Received 13,415 7,988 13,049 7,986
Paid (10,080) (4,934) (9,905) (5,181)
Fees, commissions and other income and charges:
Received 2,710 2,565 978 1,313
Paid (597) (558) (506) (481)
Operating lease income received 743 731 495 512
Dividends and distributions received 37 3 691 1,886
Operating expenses paid:
Employment expenses (5,266) (4,357) (1,556) (1,309)
Other operating expenses including brokerage, commission and fee expenses (1,812) (1,848) (2,770) (2,396)
Income tax paid (886) (1,070) (333) (147)
Changes in operating assets:
Loan assets, receivables and related balances with Macquarie Group entities (17,621) (16,832) (17,171) (21,931)
Assets under operating lease (643) (867) (317) (534)
Other assets (net of liabilities) (63) (417) 674 (74)
Liquid asset holdings 2,768 (4,468) 785 (3,105)
Trading and related assets, and collateralised lending
balances, including balances with Macquarie Group entities (net of liabilities) (4,677) (4,894) (4,789) (3,814)
Changes in operating liabilities:
Deposits 13,489 32,962 12,691 31,772
Issued debt securities, borrowings and other funding 2,388 (17,476) 1,255 (18,109)
Net cash flows utilised in operating activities 26 (6,095) (13,472) (6,729) (13,612)
Cash flows (utilised in)/generated from investing activities
Net proceeds/(payments) for financial investments 6 (1,074) (299) (520)
Associates, joint ventures, subsidiaries and businesses:
Proceeds from distribution or disposal, net of cash deconsolidated 99 4 32 2,368
Payments for additional contribution or acquisitions, net of cash acquired (50) (45) (46) (535)
Property, plant and equipment:
Payments for acquisitions (979) (403) (714) (305)
Proceeds from disposals - 25 - -
Net cash flows (utilised in)/generated from investing activities (924) (1,493) (1,027) 1,008
Cash flows (utilised in)/generated from financing activities
Receipt from issuance of loan capital 1,246 2,338 1,246 2,338
Dividends and distributions paid (2,079) (2,749) (2,079) (2,749)
Issuance of ordinary shares = 600 = 600
Net cash flows (utilised in)/generated from financing activities (833) 189 (833) 189
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (7,852) (14,776) (8,589) (12,415)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the financial year 26 61,182 72,361 56,563 64,678
Effect of exchange rate movements on cash and cash equivalents 274 3,597 153 4,300
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the financial year 26 53,604 61,182 48,127 56,563

The above statements of cash flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.



Notes to the financial statements

For the financial year ended 31 March 2024

Note 1

Basis of preparation

This Financial Report is a General Purpose Financial Report which
has been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting
Standards and the Corporations Act 2001 (Cth). Macquarie Bank
Limited is a for-profit company for the purposes of preparing this
Financial Report.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of this
Financial Report are set out in Note 41 Material accounting
policies. These policies have been consistently applied to all the
financial years presented and are applicable to both the
Consolidated Entity (Macquarie Bank Limited and its subsidiaries)
as well as the Company (Macquarie Bank Limited), unless
otherwise stated.

(i) Compliance with IFRS as issued by the IASB

Compliance with Australian Accounting Standards ensures that
this Financial Report complies with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB). Consequently, this Financial
Report is compliant with IFRS.

(i) Basis of measurement

This Financial Report has been prepared on a going concern basis
using the historical cost convention except for the following items,
as disclosed in the respective accounting policy:

financial instruments (including derivatives) required to be
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL); financial
assets classified as fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI) and financial instruments that have been
designated as FVTPL (DFVTPL)

- financial assets and liabilities that are otherwise measured on
an amortised cost basis but adjusted for changes in fair value
attributable to the risk being hedged in qualifying fair value
hedge relationships

- non-current assets and disposal groups that have been
classified as held for sale and where a disposal group has been
impaired to its fair value less costs to sell
commodity inventories that are measured at fair value less
costs to sell in accordance with the broker-trader exemption.

(iiii) Critical accounting estimates and significant judgements

The preparation of this Financial Report in compliance with
Australian Accounting Standards requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise
judgement in the process of applying the accounting policies. The
notes to the financial statements set out areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions
are significant to the consolidated Financial Report such as:

determining the appropriate business model for a group of
financial assets which includes determining the level at which
the business model condition is applied and whether past or
expected sales activity is consistent with a held to collect
business model (Note 41(vii))

assessing whether the cash flows generated by a financial asset
constitute solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) may
require the application of judgement, particularly for certain
subordinated or non-recourse positions, and in the
determination of whether compensation for early termination
of a contract is reasonable (Note 41(vii))
choice of inputs, estimates and assumptions used in the
measurement of Expected Credit Loss, including the
determination of significant increase in credit risk (SICR),
forecasts of economic conditions and the weightings assigned
thereto (Note 41(xii) and Note 12)
timing and amount of impairment of interests in associates and
joint ventures and investment in subsidiaries, including the
reversal thereof (Note 41(i), Note 41(xxii) and Note 14)
determining fair value of assets and liabilities where
market-observable inputs are not available including the
determination of non-recurring fair values and accounting for
day 1 profits or losses for financial instruments (Note 41(vii),
Note 41(x) and Note 35)
determination of significant influence over associates, joint
control over arrangements and control over subsidiaries,
including the assessment of whether certain rights are
protective or substantive in nature, whether these rights are
held in the capacity as agent or principal, and whether the level
of involvement in an investee’s relevant activities is sufficient
to significantly affect the returns generated (Note 41(i)
recoverability of tax receivables, deferred tax assets and
measurement of current and deferred tax liabilities can require
significant judgement, particularly where the recoverability of
such tax balances relies on the estimation of future taxable
profits and management’s determination of the likelihood that
uncertain tax positions will be accepted by the relevant
taxation authority (Note 41(vi), Note 4 and Note 15)
recognition and measurement of provisions related to actual
and potential claims and the determination of contingent
liabilities (Note 41(xvii) and Note 30)

- application of hedge accounting principles, including the
assessment that a forecast transaction is highly probable
(Note 41(x) and Note 32).

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including reasonable
expectations of future events.

Management believes that the estimates used in preparing this
Financial Report are reasonable. Notwithstanding, it is possible
that outcomes within the next financial year differ from
management’s assumptions and estimates, which may result in an
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the reported assets and
liabilities in future reporting periods.



Note 1
Basis of preparation

(iv) New Australian Accounting Standards and amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards and interpretations that are
effective in the current financial year

(a) AASB 17 Insurance Contracts (AASB 17)

AASB 17 amends the accounting for insurance contracts and
replaces AASB 4 Insurance Contracts, AASB 1023 General
Insurance Contracts and AASB 1038 Life Insurance Contracts.

The adoption of AASB 17, mandatorily effective for the current
annual reporting period, did not have a material impact on this
Financial Report.

(b) AASB 2023-2 Amendments to Australian Accounting
Standards - International Tax Reform - Pillar Two Model Rules
(AASB 2023-2)

The Pillar Two Model Rules are part of the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development’s inclusive framework
designed to address the tax challenges arising from the
digitalisation of the economy. The Pillar Two Model Rules:

aim to ensure that large multinational groups pay a minimum
amount of tax on income arising in each jurisdiction in which
they operate; and

would achieve that aim by applying a system of top-up taxes
that results in the total amount of taxes payable on Global
Anti-Base Erosion Rules (GloBE) income in each jurisdiction
representing at least the minimum rate of 15%.

The Consolidated Entity’s Pillar Two Project

During 2022, the Consolidated Entity initiated a project to manage
the impact of the Pillar Two rules globally. The project’s scope is to
ensure the Consolidated Entity and its subsidiaries can meet their
Pillar Two compliance obligations.

As part of the project, the Consolidated Entity is monitoring the
progress of the implementation of the model rules into domestic
legislation and certain jurisdictions in which the Consolidated
Entity has operations and have started to enact the rules generally
with operational effect from the Consolidated Entity's

31 March 2025 financial year.

Financial Report

Impacts on financial reporting

In June 2023, the AASB issued AASB 2023-2 which makes
amendments to AASB 112 Income Taxes with immediate effect.
The standard provides a mandatory temporary exception to
accounting for deferred taxes arising from the implementation of
the Pillar Two Model Rules published by the Organisation for
Economic Co-operation and Development. The Consolidated Entity
has applied this exception in preparing its annual Financial Report.

The Consolidated Entity will ultimately be subject to Pillar Two
legislation in various jurisdictions. Applicable Pillar Two legislation
was not effective at the reporting date and as a result the
Consolidated Entity has no related current tax exposure as at

31 March 2024.

Due to the complexities in applying the legislation and calculating
GloBE income and covered taxes, the quantitative impact of the
enacted or substantively enacted legislation has to date been
estimated using historical data over a number of years. Based on
this assessment it is not anticipated that there will be a material
impact to current tax expense of the Consolidated Entity or the
Company on implementation of the changes. The impact of the
Pillar Two income taxes legislation on future financial performance
will continue to be assessed.

(c) Other amendments made to existing standards

The amendments made to other existing standards that were
mandatorily effective for the annual reporting period beginning
on 1 April 2023 did not result in a material impact on this
Financial Report.

(v) New Australian Accounting Standards and amendments to
Australian Accounting Standards and Interpretations that are
not yet effective for the financial year

(i) IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements

In April 2024, the International Accounting Standards Board issued
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements (IFRS
18) which sets out requirements for the presentation and
disclosure of information in general purpose financial statements.
IFRS 18 is effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2027. The transition provisions of IFRS 18 require
retrospective application. The AASB is expected to issue the
Australian equivalent of the standard in June 2024. The
Consolidated Entity is continuing to assess the full impact of
adopting IFRS 18.

(i) Other amendments made to existing standards

Other amendments to existing standards that are not mandatorily
effective for the annual reporting period beginning on 1 April 2023
and have not been early adopted, are not likely to result in a

material impact to the Consolidated Entity’s financial statements.



Notes to the financial statements
For the financial year ended 31 March 2024

Note 1
Basis of preparation

(vi) Other developments
(a) ISSB sustainability reporting standards

During the year, the International Sustainability Standards Board
(ISSB) published the following sustainability reporting standards:

IFRS S1 General Requirements of Sustainability-related
Financial Information (IFRS S1), which sets out the overall
requirements for sustainability-related financial

disclosures, and

IFRS S2 Climate-related Disclosures (IFRS S2), which will
require the disclosure of information that enables the users of
financial statements to understand the reporting entity's
governance, strategy, risk management, and metrics and
targets in relation to climate-related risks and opportunities.

In Australia, the proposed sustainability standards have been
issued for exposure and comment while proposed legislation has
been tabled in Parliament under the Treasury Laws Amendment
(Financial Market Infrastructure and Other Measures) Bill 2024
(Cth). In the present form, these requirements would have the
Consolidated Entity commence reporting for its financial year
commencing on 1 April 2025. The Consolidated Entity
acknowledges the growing importance of sustainability-related
disclosures and continues to progress its established project to
assess and prepare for future sustainability and climate-related
reporting obligations.

(b) IBOR reform: Transition from inter-bank offered rates (IBOR) to
alternative reference rates (ARRs)

IBOR interest rate benchmarks that are used in a wide variety of
financial instruments (such as derivatives and lending
arrangements) have undergone, or are undergoing, reform. The
nature of such reforms varies by benchmark and jurisdiction.

IBOR including the GBP, JPY, EUR, CHF and USD London Inter-bank
Offered Rate (‘LIBOR’), as well as IBOR for certain other minor
currencies, have ceased publication. The Consolidated Entity’s
IBOR reform project oversaw the transition of such exposures and
the Consolidated Entity ceased the use of LIBOR in new products in
accordance with industry and regulatory guidance.

The Consolidated Entity continues to have certain exposures
referencing IBOR undergoing reform (including the Canadian Dollar
Offer Rate (CDOR) and Mexican Interbank Equilibrium Interest Rate
(TIE)). Information regarding these exposures is disclosed in Note
33.3 Market Risk.
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Note 2
Operating profit before income tax
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2024 2023 2024 2023
$m $m $m $m
Net interest income
Interest and similar income:’
Effective interest rate method - Amortised cost 10,837 6,975 10,623 6,390
Effective interest rate method - FVOCI 2,109 983 2,133 1,078
Other 624 281 576 248
Interest and similar expense:
Effective interest rate method - Amortised cost (10,364) (5,564) (10,146) (5,783)
Other (75) (35) (96) (36)
Net interest income 3,131 2,640 3,090 2,397
Net trading income®
Commodities® 3,861 6,154 1,817 2,450
Credit, interest rate and foreign exchange products 813 803 817 856
Equities 596 430 512 279
Net trading income 5,270 7,387 3,146 3,585
Fee and commission income
Service fee from Macquarie Group entities 1,482 1,312 265 144
Brokerage and other trading-related fees 334 285 228 196
Portfolio administration fees 296 272 55 50
Lending fees 150 143 236 280
Other fee and commission income 329 305 187 222
Total fee and commission income 2,591 2,317 971 892

! Prior year comparatives for interest income have been re-presented between Effective Interest rate and Other to conform with the presentation in the current year in alignment with

the accounting policy.

% Includes gains/losses for Trading Assets, Derivatives and Other Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities held at fair value including any ineffectiveness recorded on hedging transactions.
? Includes $640 million (2023: $529 million) in the Consolidated Entity and $29 million (2023: $38 million) in the Company for transportation, storage and certain other trading related
costs and $8 million (2023: $11 million) in the Consolidated Entity for depreciation on right-of-use (ROU) assets held for trading-related business.
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Note 2
Operating profit before income tax
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2024 2023 2024 2023
$m $m $m $m
Credit and other impairment reversals/(charges)
Credit impairment reversals/(charges)
Loan assets® 29 (100) 42 (100)
Margin money and settlement assets 11 33 8 21
Financial investments, other assets and off balance sheet exposures (6) (52) 11 (47)
Gross credit impairment reversals/(charges) 34 (119) 61 (126)
Recovery of amounts previously written off - 3 1 4
Net credit impairment reversals/(charges) 34 (116) 62 (122)
Other impairment reversals/(charges)
Interests in associates and joint ventures 19 1 (3) (7)
Intangible and other non-financial assets (4) 1 - -
Investment in subsidiaries - - (29) (34)
Net other impairment reversals/(charges) 15 2 (32) (41)
Total credit and other impairment reversals/(charges) 49 (114) 30 (163)
Net other operating income
Investment income
Net (loss)/gain on sale of interest in subsidiaries and businesses - - (2) 31
Net gain on sale of interests in associates and joint ventures 31 39 30 40
Net (loss)/gain on financial investments and non-financial assets (12) 8 (7) (15)
Share of net profits from associates and joint ventures 41 26 - -
Dividends from subsidiaries (Note 27) - - 691 1,883
Net investment income 60 73 712 1,939
Operating lease income
Rental income 856 724 574 519
Depreciation (423) (346) (252) (230)
Net operating lease income 433 378 322 289
Other income 32 110 25 96
Total net other operating income 525 561 1,059 2,324
Net operating income 11,566 12,791 8,296 9,035

*Includes ECL reversal of $8 million (2023: $nil million) on Due from subsidiaries for the Company.
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Note 2
Operating profit before income tax
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2024 2023 2024 2023
$m $m $m $m
Employment expenses
Salary and related costs including commissions, superannuation and performance-related profit
share (4,137) (4,015) (1,193) (1,154)
Share-based payments (446) (417) (187) (152)
Provision for long service leave and annual leave (34) (46) (9) (13)
Total compensation expenses (4,617) (4,478) (1,389) (1,319)
Other employment expenses including on-costs, staff procurement and staff training (294) (280) (104) (89)
Total employment expenses (4,911) (4,758) (1,493) (1,408)
Brokerage, commission and fee expenses
Brokerage and other trading-related fee expenses (486) (445) (327) (290)
Other fee and commission expenses (108) (75) (186) (141)
Total brokerage, commission and fee expenses (594) (520) (513) (431)
Non-salary technology expenses
Information services (134) (127) (62) (58)
Depreciation on own use assets: equipment (23) (19) (3) (3)
Service provider and other non-salary technology expenses (785) (744) (124) (112)
Total non-salary technology expenses (942) (890) (189) (173)
Other operating expenses
Occupancy expenses
Lease and other occupancy expenses (277) (233) (78) (74)
Depreciation on own use assets: buildings, furniture, fittings and leasehold improvements (43) (35) - (2)
Total occupancy expenses (320) (268) (78) (76)
Other expenses
Service cost recoveries by Central Services Group - - (2,285) (2,148)
Professional fees (224) (265) (94) (121)
Indirect and other taxes (121) (96) (68) (52)
Travel and entertainment expenses (73) (77) (23) (23)
Advertising and promotional expenses (44) (59) (38) (52)
Fees for audit and other services (36) (51) (27) (40)
Amortisation of intangible assets (5) (11) (5) (11)
Other (221) (385) (80) (162)
Total other expenses (724) (944) (2,620) (2,609)
Total other operating expenses (1,044) (1,212) (2,698) (2,685)
Total operating expenses (7,491) (7,380) (4,893) (4,697)

Operating profit before income tax 4,075 5,411 3,403 4,338
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Note 3
Segment reporting

(i) Operating segments

AASB 8 Operating Segments requires the ‘management approach’
to disclosing information about the Consolidated Entity’s
reportable segments. The financial information is reported on the
same basis as used internally by Senior Management for evaluating
Operating Segment performance and for deciding how to allocate
resources to Operating Segments. Such information may be
produced using different measures to that used in preparing the
statutory income statement.

For internal reporting, performance measurement and risk
management purposes, the Consolidated Entity is divided
into Operating Groups and a Corporate segment
(reportable segments).

The financial information disclosed relates to the Consolidated
Entity’s ordinary activities.

These segments have been set up based on the different core
products and services offered. The Operating Groups comprise:

BFS which provides a diverse range of personal banking,
wealth management and business banking products and
services to retail clients, advisers, brokers and business clients
- CGM which is a global business offering capital and financing,
risk management, market access, physical execution and
logistics solutions to its diverse client base across
Commodities, Financial Markets and Asset Finance.

The Corporate segment, which is not considered an Operating
Group, comprises head office and Central Service Groups, and
holds certain legacy and strategic investments, assets and
businesses that are not allocated to any of the Operating Groups.
Any individually immaterial balance not attributable to an
Operating Segment is also reported as part of the Corporate
segment.

Items of income and expense within the Corporate segment
include the net result of managing Macquarie Bank’s liquidity and
funding requirements, earnings on capital and the residual
accounting volatility relating to economically hedged positions
where hedge accounting is applied, as well as accounting volatility
for other economically hedged positions where hedge accounting
is not applicable.

Other items of income and expense within the Corporate segment
include earnings from investments, changes in central overlays to
credit and other impairments or valuation of assets, provisions for
legacy matters, unallocated head office costs and costs of Central
Service Groups. The Corporate segment also includes
performance-related profit share and share-based payments
expense and income tax expense.

Below is a selection of key policies applied in determining the
Operating Segment results.

Internal funding arrangements

Group Treasury has the responsibility for managing wholesale
funding for the Consolidated Entity, and Operating Groups obtain
their required funding from Group Treasury. The Operating Groups
are assumed to be fully debt funded for the purposes of internal
funding charges. The interest rates charged by Group Treasury are
determined by the currency and term of the funding.

Generally, with the exception of deposit funding, Operating Groups
may only source funding directly from external sources where the
funding is secured by the Operating Group’s assets. In such cases,
Operating Groups bear the funding costs directly and Group
Treasury may levy additional charges, where appropriate.

Transactions between Operating Segments

Operating Segments that enter into arrangements with other
Operating Segments must do so on commercial terms or as agreed
by the Consolidated Entity’s Chief Executive Officer or Chief
Financial Officer.

Internal transactions are recognised in each of the relevant
categories of income and expense and eliminated on consolidation
as appropriate.

Accounting for derivatives that economically hedge interest
rate risk

With respect to businesses that predominantly earn income from
lending activities, derivatives that hedge interest rate risk are
measured at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). Changes in
the fair value are presented in net trading income and give rise to
income statement volatility unless designated in hedge accounting
relationships. If designated in fair value hedge accounting
relationships, the carrying value of the hedged items are adjusted
for changes in fair value attributable to the hedged risks to reduce
volatility in the income statement. If designated in cash flow
hedge accounting relationships, the effective portion of the
derivatives' fair value gains or losses are deferred in the cash flow
hedge reserve as part of Other Comprehensive Income (OCl), and
subsequently recognised in the income statement at the time at
which the hedged items affect the income statement for the
hedged risks. For segment reporting, derivatives are accounted for
on an accrual basis in the results of the Operating Groups to the
extent that the Corporate segment manages the derivative
volatility, either through the application of hedge accounting or
where the derivative volatility may offset the volatility of other
positions managed within the Corporate segment.
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Segment reporting

(i) Operating segments
Central Service Groups

The Central Service Groups provide a range of functions
supporting MGL’s Operating Groups, ensuring they have the
appropriate workplace support and systems to operate effectively
and the necessary resources to meet their regulatory, compliance,
financial, legal and risk management requirements.

Central Service Groups recover their costs from Operating Groups
generally on either a time and effort allocation basis or a fee for
service basis. Central Service Groups include the Corporate
Operations Group (COG), Financial Management Group (FMG), Risk
Management Group (RMG), Legal and Governance Group (LGG) and
Central Executive.

Performance-related profit share and share-based
payments expense

Performance-related profit share and share-based payments
expense relating to the Macquarie Group Employee Retained
Equity Plan (MEREP) are recognised in the Corporate segment and
are not allocated to Operating Groups.

Financial Report

Income tax

The income tax expense and benefit is recognised in the Corporate
segment and are not allocated to the Operating Groups. However,
to recognise an Operating Group’s contribution to permanent
income tax differences, the internal management revenue/charge
category is used.

This internal management revenue/charge category, which is
primarily used for permanent income tax differences generated by
the Operating Groups, is offset by an equal and opposite amount
recognised in the Corporate segment such that they are
eliminated on consolidation.

Presentation of segment income statements

The income statements on the following pages for each of the
reported segments are in some cases summarised by grouping
non-material balances together. Where appropriate, all material or
key balances have been reported separately to provide users with
information relevant to the understanding of the Consolidated
Entity’s financial performance. The financial information disclosed
relates to the Consolidated Entity’s ordinary activities.

Reportable segment assets

Segment assets are the external operating assets that are
employed by a segment in its operating activities.
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Note 3
Segment reporting

(i) Operating segments

The following is an analysis of the Consolidated Entity’s revenue and results by reportable segment.

Banking and Commodities and
Financial Services Global Markets Corporate Total
$m $m $m $m
CONSOLIDATED 2024
Net interest and trading income 2,645 4,853 903 8,401
Fee and commission income 554 573 1,464 2,591
Other operating income and charges
Net credit and other impairment reversals 15 8 26 49
Net other operating income and charges (6) 522 9 525
Internal management revenue/(charges) 1 23 (24) -
Net operating income 3,209 5,979 2,378 11,566
Total operating expenses (1,968) (2,863) (2,660) (7,491)
Operating profit/(loss) before income tax 1,241 3,116 (282) 4,075
Income tax expense - - (1,163) (1,163)
Net profit/(loss) contribution 1,241 3,116 (1,445) 2,912
Reportable segment assets 141,982 134,458 63,723 340,163
CONSOLIDATED 2023
Net interest and trading income 2,520 7,281 226 10,027
Fee and commission income 504 517 1,296 2,317
Other operating income and charges
Net credit and other impairment charges (34) (53) (27) (114)
Net other operating income and charges (20) 535 46 561
Internal management (charges)/revenue (10) 28 (18) -
Net operating income 2,960 8,308 1,523 12,791
Total operating expenses (1,759) (2,488) (3,133) (7,380)
Operating profit/(loss) before income tax 1,201 5,820 (1,610) 5,411
Income tax expense - - (1,506) (1,506)
Net profit/(loss) contribution 1,201 5,820 (3,116) 3,905
Reportable segment assets 129,049 141,925 59,849 330,823
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(i) Fee and commission income/(expense) relating to contracts with customers
The following is an analysis of the Consolidated Entity’s fee and commission income/(expense) by reportable segment.

Banking and Commodities and

Financial Services Global Markets Corporate Total
$m $m $m $m
CONSOLIDATED 2024

Fee and commission income
Service fee from Macquarie Group entities - - 1,482 1,482
Brokerage and other trading-related fees 39 295 = 334
Portfolio administration fees 296 - - 296
Lending fees 146 4 = 150
Other fee and commission income 73 274 (18) 329
Total fee and commission income 554 573 1,464 2,591
CONSOLIDATED 2023

Fee and commission income
Service fee from Macquarie Group entities - - 1,312 1,312
Brokerage and other trading-related fees 39 246 - 285
Portfolio administration fees 272 - - 272
Lending fees 140 5 (2) 143
Other fee and commission income 53 266 (14) 305
Total fee and commission income 504 517 1,296 2,317

(iii) Products and services

The Consolidated Entity’s Operating Segments reflect different core products and services offered by the Group. Refer Note 3(i) Operating
segments for net operating income contribution by various Operating Segments.

(iv) Geographical areas

Geographical segments have been determined based on the tax domicile of the entity where the transactions have been recorded. The
operations of the Consolidated Entity are headquartered in Australia.

CONSOLIDATED 2024 CONSOLIDATED 2023

Income’  Non-current assets’ Income’ Non-current assets’

$m $m $m $m

Australia 5,416 2,083 5,048 1,312
Europe, Middle East and Africa® 2,868 2,980 2,890 2,845
Americas’ 2,613 1,026 4,093 448
Asia Pacific 669 345 760 481
Total 11,566 6,434 12,791 5,086

(v) Major customers
The Consolidated Entity does not rely on any major customers.

! Income represents net operating income disclosed in the income statement, prior period comparatives have been re-presented to conform to changes in the current period.
® Non-current assets consists of intangible assets, interests in associates and joint ventures, property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets and investment properties.

? Includes income from the United Kingdom of $2,441 million (2023: $2,436 million).
* Includes income from the United States of $2,303 million (2023: $4,066 million).
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Note 4
Income tax expense
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2024 2023 2024 2023
$m $m $m $m
(i) Income tax (expense)/benefit
Current tax expense (1,106) (1,693) (837) (845)
Deferred tax (expense)/benefit (57) 187 (157) 264
Total income tax expense (1,163) (1,506) (994) (581)
(i) Reconciliation of income tax expense to prima facie tax expense
Prima facie income tax expense on operating profit @30% (2023: 30%) (1,223) (1,623) (1,021) (1,301)
Tax effect of amounts which are (non-deductible)/non-assessable in calculating taxable income:
Rate differential on offshore income 84 146 (149) 216
Intra-group dividends - - 207 565
Impairment on subsidiaries - - (9) (10)
Other items (24) (29) (22) (51)
Total income tax expense (1,163) (1,506) (994) (581)
(iii) Tax benefit/(expense) relating to OCI
FVOCl reserve 11 1 6 19
Own credit risk 4 (6) 3 (6)
Cash flow hedges and cost of hedging 15 1 15 -
Share of other comprehensive expense of associates and joint ventures (13) (1) - -
Total tax benefit/(expense) relating to OCI 17 (5) 24 13
(iv) Deferred tax (expense)/benefit represents movements in deferred tax assets
and liabilities
Property, plant and equipment (9) (6) (17) (6)
Intangible assets 42 18 28 11
Financial investments and interests in associates and joint ventures (16) 6 - (3)
Tax losses 2 11 (4) (9)
Operating and finance leases 43 20 21 25
Loan assets and derivatives (36) 43 (148) 214
Other assets and liabilities (83) 95 (37) 32
Deferred tax (expense)/benefit (57) 187 (157) 264

Revenue authorities undertake risk reviews and audits as part of their normal activities. The Consolidated Entity has assessed these and other
taxation claims and litigation, including seeking external advice where appropriate, and considers that it holds appropriate provisions.
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Note 5
Dividends
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2024 2023 2024 2023
$m $m $m $m
Dividends paid to parent entity (Macquarie B.H. Pty Limited)
on 28 March 2024 337 - 337 -
on 29 September 2023 623 - 623 -
on 30 June 2023 1,119 - 1,119 -
on 30 March 2023 - 1,449 - 1,449
on 29 December 2022 = 1,300 = 1,300
Total dividends paid (Note 25) 2,079 2,749 2,079 2,749
Note 6
Trading assets
Equity securities 18,831 7,699 18,706 7,674
Commodity contracts 2,980 3,611 2,557 3,139
Debt securities 2,853 2,863 2,774 2,861
Commodity inventories 1,964 1,619 1,470 783
Total trading assets 26,628 15,792 25,507 14,457

The majority of the above amounts are expected to be materially recovered within 12 months of the balance date by the Consolidated Entity

and the Company.

Note 7
Margin money and settlement assets

Margin money

Security settlement assets

Commodity settlement assets

Total margin money and settlement assets

12,711
2,527
1,389

16,627

13,969
1,876
3,530

19,375

10,660
2,477
620
13,757

10,537
1,886
2,095

14,518

The majority of the above amounts are expected to be materially recovered within 12 months of the balance date by the Consolidated Entity

and the Company.
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Note 8
Derivative assets
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY

2024 2023 2024 2023
$m $m $m $m
Held for trading 22,982 34,759 18,894 26,267
Designated in hedge relationships 784 1,061 672 908
Total derivative assets 23,766 35,820 19,566 27,175

The above amounts under held for trading category are expected to be materially recovered within 12 months of the balance date by the
Consolidated Entity and the Company.

Note 9
Financial investments
Equity securities:
Listed 71 65 67 62
Unlisted 167 200 115 147
Debt securities:
Liquid asset holdings 15,978 14,040 15,978 12,511
Bonds, money market and other securities 2,758 2,594 2,435 1,999
Total financial investments 18,974 16,899 18,595 14,719

Of the above amounts, $1,532 million (2023: $2,218 million) is expected to be recovered after 12 months of the balance date by the
Consolidated Entity and $1,476 million (2023: $2,165 million) by the Company.

88



About

Directors’ Report Financial Report

Further Information

Note 10
Held for sale and other assets
CONSOLIDATED COMPANY
2024 2023 2024 2023
$m $m $m $m
Held for sale assets
Assets held for sale - 6 - -
Other financial assets
Commodity-related receivables 4,797 3,247 3,062 2,391
Trade debtors and other receivables 1,685 1,526 864 1,286
Fee and commission receivables 90 113 62 67
Total other financial assets 6,572 4,886 3,988 3,744
Other non-financial assets
Interest in associates and joint ventures 505 412 138 120
Prepayments 391 283 78 58
Income tax receivables 298 305 89 84
Indirect tax receivables 117 201 10 126
Intangible assets 95 97 8 13
Other 129 88 16 7
Total other non-financial assets 1,535 1,386 339 408
Total held for sale and other assets 8,107 6,278 4,327 4,152

Of the above other financial and non-financial assets, $756 million (2023: $1,045 million) is expected to be recovered after 12 months of the
balance date by the Consolidated Entity and $217 million (2023: $485 million) by the Company.
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Note 11
Loan assets
2024 2023

Gross  ECL allowance Net Gross  ECL allowance Net
$m $m $m $m $m $m
CONSOLIDATED
Home loans® 120,521 (106) 120,415 109,132 (121) 109,011
Corporate, commercial and other lending? 28,952 (340) 28,612 23,988 (344) 23,644
Asset financing”* 7,814 (105) 7,709 9,264 (159) 9,105
Total loan assets 157,287 (551) 156,736 142,384 (624) 141,760
COMPANY
Home loans® 120,521 (106) 120,415 109,132 (121) 109,011
Corporate, commercial and other lending? 27,840 (296) 27,544 23,195 (304) 22,891
Asset financing”> 6,779 (68) 6,711 8,282 (99) 8,183
Total loan assets 155,140 (470) 154,670 140,609 (524) 140,085

Of the above amounts, $130,595 million (2023: $92,421 million) is expected to be recovered more than 12 months after the balance date by the
Consolidated Entity and $129,278 million (2023: $92,424 million) by the Company.

Finance lease receivables

Finance lease receivables are included within loan assets. The Consolidated Entity provides finance leases to a broad range of clients to support
financing needs in acquiring movable assets such as motor vehicles, small plant and equipment, electronic and IT equipment.

The following table represents the maturity profile of the contractual undiscounted cash flows of the Consolidated Entity and the Company.

2024 2023
Gross Present value of Present value of
investment in minimum lease  Gross investment minimum lease
finance lease Unearned payments in finance lease Unearned payments
receivables income receivable receivables income receivable
$m $m $m $m $m $m
CONSOLIDATED
Within one year 981 (89) 892 920 (77) 843
Between one to two years 649 (63) 586 598 (54) 544
Between two to three years 462 (51) 411 388 (37) 351
Between three to four years 179 (17) 162 228 (23) 205
Between four to five years 108 (10) 98 181 (11) 170
Later than five years 13 — 13 22 (1) 21
Total 2,392 (230) 2,162 2,337 (203) 2,134
COMPANY
Within one year 705 (63) 642 681 (48) 633
Between one to two years 419 (40) 379 453 (32) 421
Between two to three years 281 (27) 254 297 (22) 275
Between three to four years 149 (13) 136 161 (12) 149
Between four to five years 88 (8) 80 108 (7) 101
Later than five years 2 - 2 4 (1) 3
Total 1,644 (151) 1,493 1,704 (122) 1,582

! The ECL allowance carried against loan assets measured at FVOCI is not presented in the table as the allowance is included in reserves. Refer Note 12 Expected credit losses.

2 Prior period comparatives have been re-presented to conform to changes in the current period.

® Includes $4,534 million (2023: $5,986 million) of car loan portfolio in the Consolidated Entity and $4,442 million (2023: $5,640 million) in the Company, for which in April 2024 it was
annouced new car lending will cease.
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Note 12
Expected credit losses

The Consolidated Entity models the Expected Credit Losses (ECL)
for on-balance sheet financial assets measured at amortised cost
or FVOClI such as loans, debt securities and lease receivables,

as well as off-balance sheet items such as undrawn loan
commitments, certain financial guarantee contracts and letters
of credit.

Model inputs

The Consolidated Entity segments its credit portfolio between
retail and wholesale exposures, and further splits these portfolios
into representative groupings which are typically based on shared
risk characteristics.

The Consolidated Entity has developed several models to predict
the ECL. These models incorporate a range of components notably
that of Exposure at Default (EAD), Probability of Default (PD) and
Loss Given Default (LGD) (‘credit inputs’) as well as
Forward-Looking Information (FLI).

For retail portfolios, behavioural variables are also considered in
the determination of inputs for ECL modelling.

The key model inputs used in measuring the ECL include:

« Exposure at Default (EAD): The EAD represents the estimated
exposure in the event of a default

+  Probability of Default (PD): The calculation of PDs for retail
and wholesale exposures is generally performed at a facility
level. Retail exposures are segmented based on product type
and shared characteristics that are highly correlated to credit
risk such as region, product, counterparty groupings,
loan-to-value ratio and other similar criteria. Wholesale
portfolio PDs are a function of industry type, internal credit
ratings and transition matrices used to determine a point in
time PD estimate. PD estimates for both retail and wholesale
portfolios are also adjusted for FLI

«  Loss Given Default (LGD): The LGD associated with the PD
used is the magnitude of the ECL in a default event. The LGD is
estimated using historical loss rates considering relevant
factors for individual exposures or portfolios.

Significant increase in credit risk (SICR)

The Consolidated Entity periodically assesses exposures to
determine whether there has been a SICR, which may be evidenced
by either qualitative or quantitative factors. Qualitative factors
include, but are not limited to material change in internal credit
rating or whether an exposure has been identified and placed on
CreditWatch, an internal credit monitoring mechanism supervised
by senior management to closely monitor exposures showing signs
of stress. All exposures on CreditWatch are classified as Stage Il or,
if defaulted, as Stage IIl.

Financial Report

SICR thresholds, which require judgement, are used to determine
whether an exposure’s credit risk has increased significantly. The
SICR methodology is based on a relative credit risk approach which
considers changes in an underlying exposure’s credit risk since
origination. This may result in exposures being classified in Stage II
that are of a higher credit quality than other similar exposures that
are classified as Stage I. Accordingly, while similar increases in the
quantum of Stage Il exposures will suggest a relative deterioration
of credit quality, it should not necessarily be inferred that the
assets are of a lower credit quality.

Retail exposures

Exposures are assigned a behavioural score which considers the
exposures’ lifetime PD on initial recognition. This behavioural score
is periodically assessed and updated to reflect changes in the
underlying exposures’ credit behaviour. SICR movement thresholds
between origination and reporting date of behavioural score
movements have been established that, where exceeded, result in
the exposure being categorised as Stage II.

Wholesale exposures

The Consolidated Entity assigns an internal credit rating to each
exposure at origination based on information available at that
date. These internal ratings are broadly aligned to external credit
rating agencies such as Standard & Poor’s and Moody’s.

Where an exposures’ assigned credit rating deteriorates beyond
pre-defined thresholds per credit rating at origination, the
exposure is categorised as Stage Il. The methodology has been
calibrated so that a larger change in rating is required for higher
quality credit rated exposures than for lower quality credit rated
exposures to be classified as Stage II.

For both retail and wholesale portfolios:
the AASB 9 ‘low credit risk’ exemption is not applied by the
Consolidated Entity to material portfolios
for material retail portfolios, the credit risk for an exposure or
portfolio is generally deemed to have increased significantly if
the exposure is more than 30 days past due, unless there are
product specific characteristics that indicate that this
threshold should be rebutted.

Definition of default

The Consolidated Entity’s definition of default determines the
reference point for the calculation of the ECL components, and in
particular the PD. Default is generally defined as the point when
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations in full, without
recourse by the Consolidated Entity to actions such as realisation
of available security; or the borrower is 90 days or more past due
on an obligation to the Consolidated Entity.

The Consolidated Entity periodically monitors its exposures for
potential indicators of default such as significant financial
difficulty of the borrower including breaches of lending covenants;
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other
financial reorganisation; the disappearance of